
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: Thursday, 25th March, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Minutes  4 - 12 

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held on 22nd February 2021 and to note the 

actions list appended thereto. 

 

5   Corporate Overview an Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

2020/2021  

13 - 18 

 To note the Committee’s Work Programme 2020/2021  

6   Update on the Introduction of Charges for Wheeled Bins  19 - 22 

Public Document Pack



 Director of Neighbourhoods to update on the introduction of charges 

for new and replacement wheeled bins which went live on 23rd 

November 2020. 

 

7   1st & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints  23 - 33 

 A report covering corporate complaints received in the first two 

quarters of 2020/2021. 

 

8   Draft Digital Strategy  34 - 62 

 John Rooney and Rebecca Huddleston to report  

9   Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21: 

Quarter 3 Performance Update  

63 - 82 

 Performance information relating to the Neighbourhoods and 

Resources Directorates for the third quarter 2020/2021 (October – 

December 2020). 

 

10   Financial Update on the Covid-19 Pandemic  83 - 91 

 Report of the Chief Finance Officer  

11   Finance Update Report (Period 10 - 2020/2021)  92 - 126 

 To update the Committee of the Council’s forecast 2020/2021 financial 

position as at the end of January 2021. 

 

12   Greater Manchester Combined Authority - Corporate Issues and 

Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

127 - 135 

 To note the Minutes of the meeting of Greater Manchester Combined 

Authority’s Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, held 9th February 2021. 

 

13   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

 



 
 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

14   Property Investments - Performance and Risk - 2020/21  136 - 143 

 To consider the report of the Director of Resources.  

 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 
Councillor David Bamford Councillor Malcolm Boriss 
Councillor Michael Holly (Chair) Councillor Peter Joinson 
Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Kallum Nolan 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Vice Chair) Councillor Liam O'Rourke 
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Elsie Wraighte  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Peter Thompson 
Committee Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 
Floor 2 - Number One Riverside 
Smith Street 
Rochdale 
OL16 1XU 
 
Telephone – 01706 924715 
e-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  
 
 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Monday 22 February 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Holly (Chair); Councillors Boriss, Joinson, Nolan, 
O'Neill, O'Rourke, Rana and Wraighte 
 
OFFICERS: Julie Murphy (Chief Finance Officer), Samantha Smith (Deputy 
Chief Finance Officer), Asif Ibrahim (Assistant Director – Legal, Governance 
and Workforce), Steve Blezard (Director of Operations – Adult Social Care), 
John Rooney (Assistant Director – Neighbourhoods), Mark Robinson 
(Assistant Director – Economy) and Alison James (Resources Directorate) 
 

49 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Robinson 
 

50 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

51 MINUTES 
Resolved: 

1. That the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 8th February 2021 be approved and signed 
as a correct record; 

2. That the Action List from the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 8th February 2021 be noted. 

 
52 CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 

PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2020/2021, which 
outlined the scheduled programme of reports for the remainder of the 
2020/2021 municipal year. 
 
It was noted that there would be reports being submitted to future meetings 
relating to the ICT Digital Strategy and an update on charges for Wheeled 
Bins. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1.    The Committee’s Work Programme 2020/2021 be noted. 
 

53 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003 
The Chief Finance Officer submitted a report that was also due to be 
presented to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting, on 25th February 2021, with 
the proposed Revenue Budget, Capital Programme, and Council Tax 
2020/2021 for recommendation to Budget Council. It was noted that the 
information contained in the report was subject to the Final Local Government 
Finance Settlement and approval of the Mayor of Greater Manchester 
precepts for 2020/2021. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



  
Members were informed that the report established the key financial 
challenges and issues which would be faced by the Council over the period 
2021/2022 to 2023/2024 and provided details of the assumptions and 
estimates which underpin the budget. The budget also took into account the 
latest known developments at both regional and local levels, including reports 
on the integration of health and social care within the pooled budget 
arrangements. 
  
The Committee was informed of the revenue proposals which were being 
recommended to Cabinet to enable a balanced budget to be considered and 
presented to Budget Council for approval. It was noted that the capital 
programme being recommended to Cabinet had been consulted on during the 
autumn 2019. This would also be presented to Budget Council for approval. 
  
Resolved: 

1. That the Cabinet, at its meeting on 25th February 2021, be informed 
that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends 
approval of the recommendations contained in this report, to Council. 

 
54 BUDGET REPORT AND COUNCIL TAX 2022 

The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that provided 
Members with details of the proposed Revenue Budget, Capital Programme 
and Council Tax 2021/2022, which were due to be submitted to the Cabinet 
on 25th February 2021 and to the ‘Budget’ Council meeting on 3rd March 2021. 
The information contained in the report was subject to the approval of the 
Mayor of Greater Manchester for the purpose of the Council Tax precepts for 
2021/2022. 
 
The report also outlined the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2021/2022 to 2025/2026.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy provided the 
latest budget position for the Council, setting out the key financial challenges 
and issues that were expected to be faced during that period, and it provided 
details of the assumptions and estimates which underpinned the budget. The 
strategy also took account of the latest known developments at both regional 
and local levels. 
 
In presenting the report the Chief Finance Officer advised that the Council 
was required to determine its budget for 2021/2022 by no later than 11th 
March 2021 and in doing was legally obligated to set a balanced Revenue 
Budget for 2021/2022 and provisional budgets for 2022/2023 to 2023/2024 
and to confirm its Council Tax increase for 2021/2022. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Cabinet, at its meeting on 25th February 2021, be informed 
that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends 
approval of the recommendations contained in this report. 
 
 

 

Page 5



55 RESERVES POLICY 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that outlined 
the Council’s Reserves Policy including the premise for holding the policy. The 
Reserves Policy was attached at the Appendix to the report and, as such, was 
due to be presented to the Council’s Cabinet meeting on 25th February 2021 
for approval. 
 
Members were reminded that the Council was required to demonstrate sound 
financial management and deliver a balanced budget by 11th March 2021; 
therefore, having a strategic approach to setting the required level of reserves 
for future resilience of the Council formed a key part of setting a balanced 
budget and ensuring longer term sound financial management.  
 
It was considered to be important to manage the risks of the Council, which 
holding an agreed level of reserves did. Section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 placed a general duty on local authorities to make arrangements for 
‘the proper administration of their financial affairs'. Section 25 of the Local 
Government Act 2003 required that the Chief Financial Officer of an authority 
report on the robustness of estimates and the adequacy of reserves when 
determining their precepts, and authorities were required to take the Chief 
Financial Officer’s report into account when setting the Council Tax. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Cabinet, at its meeting on 25th February 2021, be informed 
that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends 
approval of the recommendations contained in this report. 

 
56 DISCRETIONARY FEES AND CHARGES 2021/22 POST CONSULTATION 

The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer, which 
presented proposed Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2021/2022. 
Discretionary Fees and Charges were reviewed on an annual basis. At the 
Cabinet’s meeting, held 28th July 2020, a 2% general increase in Discretionary 
Fees and Charges for 2021/2022 was agreed for planning purposes, subject 
to various exemptions to be agreed. 
 
Following Consultation with members and stakeholders, the submitted report 
and its associated appendices, detailed the proposed Discretionary Fees and 
Charges for 2021/2022 and also gave details of those charges which were 
proposed to be exempt from the general 2% increase. 
 
The Cabinet was due to review the assorted Fees and Charges for 2021/2022 
at its meeting to be held on 25th February 2021. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the Cabinet, at its meeting on 25th February 2021, be informed 
that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends 
approval of the recommendations contained in this report. 
 

 

Page 6



57 DISCRETIONARY FEES AND CHARGES - PLANNING 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Assistant Director – Economy, 
which advised that further to budget savings proposals that had been 
provisionally agreed by the Cabinet on 1st December 2020, the Planning 
Service had been requested to identify ongoing savings to be realised from 
income generation. Therefore, the Assistant Director’s report proposed 
additional Discretionary Fees and Charges for Planning Services that had 
been reviewed to realise a further £30,000 of budget saving through 
anticipated additional income generation during 2021/2022. 
 
The report was due to be presented to the Cabinet on 25th February 2021 for 
determination. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Cabinet at its meeting on 25th February 2021 be requested to 
approve the additional Discretionary Fees and Charges detailed in the 
report of the Assistant Director – Economy. 

 
58 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

The Chief Finance Officer presented the 2021/2022 Treasury Management 
Strategy which outlined how the Council would meet the requirements of the 
relevant legislation, codes of practice and guidance that formed the Prudential 
Framework. 
 
It was noted that the Treasury Management Strategy was the Council’s policy 
for ensuring that: 

 Borrowing in the long term was undertaken for capital purposes 

 Borrowing plans were affordable and likely to achieve best value 

 That total debt remained within the Council’s authorised limit and 
prudential indicators 

 Risks were identified and controlled 

 Cashflows were managed to ensure that the Council could continue to 
meet its financial obligations 

  
It was reported that the Council intended to maintain an under-borrowed 
position for the period covered by the Strategy, using its own internal balances 
to fund capital expenditure whenever possible but being aware of the 
possibility of interest rate rises.  Members were reminded that Interest rates 
were currently relatively low and expected to rise slowly over the next three 
years. It was noted that the Council’s overall borrowing requirement increased 
over the period of the strategy. 
  
The Committee were informed that the Council’s treasury investment priorities 
would continue to place emphasis on security over return. Minimum credit 
criteria would be set to ensure the creditworthiness of counterparties which 
would be closely monitored throughout the year to minimise risk. Limits were 
also placed on the amounts that can be placed with individual institutions and 
the durations of investments. 
 

Page 7



Members of the Committee were informed that the Cabinet, at its meeting to 
be held on 25th February 2021, would be considering this report. 
  
Resolved: 

1. That the Cabinet, at its meeting on 25th February 2021, be informed 
that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends 
approval of the recommendations contained in this report. 

 
59 CAPITAL INVESTMENT & DISPOSAL STRATEGY 

The Committees scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
outlined the capital, investment and disposal strategy for the Council, 
describing how the Council would be able to meet the requirements of the 
relevant legislation, codes of practice and guidance that form the Prudential 
Framework, and MHCLG Guidance on Local Authority Investments. 
  
It was noted that the 2021/2022 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy 
was to be the Council’s policy for ensuring that the following outcomes were 
met: 

 To provide an overview of the Council’s plans for capital 
investments/disposals, and asset management planning. 

 To set out the governance process for approval and monitoring of 
capital expenditure, and any related long-term liabilities. 

 To show how the Council’s planned capital expenditure will be funded 
within the context of relevant funding limits, how any external debt will 
be repaid, and what the associated costs are. 

 To set out the Council’s approach to commercial activities including 
due diligence, risk appetite and proportionality in respect of the 
Council’s overall resources. 

 To summarise the knowledge and skills available to the Council, and 
whether these are considered to be commensurate with its risk 
appetite. 

  
Member were reminded that the Strategy was a high-level overview of how 
the Council’s capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management 
activity contribute to the provision of services. The Strategy provided an 
overview of how risks were managed, and what the implications are for future 
financial sustainability. The purpose of the Strategy was to set out how the 
Council takes capital expenditure and investment decisions in line with service 
objectives and properly takes account of stewardship, value for money, 
prudence, sustainability and affordability. 
 
The Committee was informed that the Cabinet was due to consider this report 
at its meeting to be held on 25th February 2021. 
 
It was requested that reports be submitted to future meetings of the 
Committee in relation to the Property Growth Fund. 
 
 
 

Page 8



Resolved: 
 

1. That the Cabinet, at its meeting on 25th February 2021, be informed 
that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends 
approval of the recommendations contained in this report; 

2. That reports relating to the Property Growth Fund be submitted to 
future meetings of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
60 SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2021/22 TO 2022/23 - UPDATE FOLLOWING 

CONSULTATION 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer, which 
provided an update on the results of consultation on the proposed Savings 
Programme 2021/2022 to 2022/2023. 
 
The Committee noted that previous comments made on the proposals at the 
meeting held on 8th February 2021 had been incorporated into the report that 
would be submitted to Cabinet on 25th February 2021. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the proposed Savings Program – Update Following Consultation 
be noted. 

 
61 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved:  
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

  
Reason for Decision: 
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be a 
disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Parts 1 and 4 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

62 SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer, which 
presented the individual consultation responses on the proposed Savings 
Programme 2021/2022. 
 

Resolved: 
1. That the individual consultation responses on the proposed Savings 

Programme 2021/2022 be noted. 
 

Page 9



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Actions List (after 22nd February 2021 meeting) 
 

ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED 

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S) 

TIMESCALE OUTCOME 

Townships Plan 2020-
2022 
 

Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Committee to meet to consider the 
establishment of a study group to 
examine the role of Township 
Committees. 
 

Peter Thompson Ongoing   

Charges for New and 
Replacement Wheeled 
Bins 

An update report on the 
introduction of charges for new and 
replacement wheeled bins which 
went live on 23rd November 2020. 
 

Martin Taylor/Jo Oliver Future meetings of 
the Corporate 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Report to 25th 
March 2021 
meeting 

Property Growth Fund 
Sub-Committee 

Performance reports, which are 
presented to the Property Growth 
Fund Sub-Committee, to be further 
presented to this Committee, to 
scrutinise performance etc. 

Chief Finance Officer Ongoing  Report to 25th 
March 2021 
meeting 

Draft Digital Strategy Report outlining the Council’s Draft 
Digital Strategy 

Assistant Director – 
Neighbourhoods -
(Information, Customers 
and Communities) 

March 2021 Presentation to 25th 
March 2021 
meeting 

Council’s 
Communications 
Priorities 

Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report to a future meeting 
of the Committee regarding the 
Council’s ‘communications 
priorities’ 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 
Customers and 
Communities) 

Early in 2021/2022 
Municipal Year 
 

 

P
age 10



Minutes of GMCA 
Scrutiny Committee 
meetings 

Future agendas for meetings of 
Corporate O&S Committee, 
wherever possible, to include the 
minutes, of meetings of Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority 
Scrutiny Committees.   
 

Peter Thompson Future meetings of 
the Corporate 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

Ongoing  

Directorate Plans Submission of Directorate Plans 
(Resources and Neighbourhoods 
Directorates) 

Director of Resources and 
Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Either at the end of 
2020/021 or the 
beginning of the 
2021/2022 Municipal 
Year 

Planning for the 
2021/22 Plans to be 
considered by the 
Committee’s Chair 
and Vice Chair in 
April 2021 

Health Related 
Absences 

The Head of Workforce and 
Organisational Development to 
provide Members of the 
Committee with a briefing note 
which compares Rochdale 
Council’s performance, relating to 
health related absences, with the 
other authorities in Greater 
Manchester. 

Head of Workforce and 
Organisational 
Development 

During 2021/2022 First scheduled 
meeting of 
2021/2022 

Scrutiny Study Group To convene a Scrutiny Study 
Group to examine two issues: the 
recruitment and selection of staff 
and establishing a Members 
Development Programme 

Peter Thompson During 2020/2021 Ongoing 

Local Government 
Ombudsman’s Annual 
report 

Clarification on which Committee(s) 
should consider this report 

Peter Thompson From 2021/2022 
onwards 

Submission to both 
Audit and 
Governance and 
Corporate O&S 
Committees as the 

P
age 11



remit  of the report 
covers areas of 
responsibility 
appertaining to both 
of these 
Committees 

Schools Final Outturns 
and Reportable Surplus 
2019/2020 

That future consideration of this 
particular item be referred in future 
years to the Council’s Health, 
Schools and Care O&S Committee 

Peter Thompson From 2021/2022 
onwards 

Future submission 
to the Health, 
Schools and Care 
O&S Committee 

Insurance Claims 
Report 

The Committee requests that future 
reports include details of 
associated ‘claims cost mitigation 
to the authority’. 

Martin Nixon Report to the 
Committee in the 
autumn of 2021 

 

 

P
age 12



 
 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
 

Who are we? 
 
The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:   

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline 
Agenda Publication 

Deadline 
Date of meeting 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
Thursday, 23rd July 2020 Monday, 27th July 2020 Tuesday, 4th August 2020 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 10th September 2020 

Monday, 14th September 

2020 

Tuesday, 22nd September 

2020 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 12th November 2020 

Monday, 16th November, 

2020 

Tuesday, 24th November 

2020 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Wednesday, 27th January 2021 Friday, 29th January 2021 Monday, 8th February 2021 

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Wednesday, 10th February 2021 Friday, 12th February 2021 

Monday, 22nd February 

2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Monday, 15th March 2021 

Wednesday, 17th March, 

2021 
Thursday, 25th March 2021 

 
 
What we do 
 
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors.  
 
How we do it 
 
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are: 
 

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology. 

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors. 

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals. 

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate. 

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance. 

 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 
performance. 

 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 
external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee). 

 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council. 

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate. 

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews. 

 Consider Annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 
 

 
CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 

20120/2021 
 
4th August 2020 

 
 
8th September 2020 
 

Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Directorate Plans 2020/2021 
(Resources and Neighbourhoods) 

 

Health Related Absence Reporting  

Employment Equality Report 2019/2020  

Corporate Complaints - Update Financial scrutiny 

Proposed Discretionary Fees and 
Charges for 2021/2022 

Financial scrutiny  

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation (P4) – including Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme 
proposals 

Financial scrutiny 

Cyber Security  Request from the Committee’s last 
meeting 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
 
 
 

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2020/2021 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2019/2020) 

 Resources Directorate 

 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 
Services) Directorate 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

Finance Update 2020/2021  

Treasury Management Year-End Report 
2019/20 

 

Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24 Guidelines 
and Timetable 

 

Property Growth Fund – Outturn report 
2019/2020 

 

Township Plan 2020- 2022  

  

Page 15



24th November 2020 
 

Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Corporate Complaints report  

Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2019/2020 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation (P6) 
 

Financial scrutiny 

Schools Outturn report 2019/2020 Performance monitoring and 
management 

Insurance Claims Report (including vfm 
presentation from the Council’s 
insurance brokerage representatives) 

Financial scrutiny 

Directorate Plan Updates (1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2020/2021) 

 Resources Directorate 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate 

 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
 
8th February 2021 
 

 
22nd February 2021 (Budget Scrutiny meeting) 
 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Financial Update report (period 8) Finance scrutiny 

Discretionary Fees and Charges Budget Scrutiny 

Budget Savings 2021/2022 Budget Scrutiny 

Page 16



 
25th March 2021 
 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Directorate Plan Updates (3rd Quarter 
2020/2021) 

 Resources Directorate 

 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 
Services) Directorate 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Corporate Complaints (6 monthly 
update – 1st and 2nd quarters 2020/21) 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Draft Digital Strategy Presentation outlining the draft 
strategy 

Update on the Introduction of Charges 
for Wheeled Bins 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Financial Impact on Covid-19 Pandemic Financial scrutiny 

Financial Update Financial scrutiny 

Property Investments - Performance 
and Risk - 2020/21 

Financial scrutiny of the activities 
of the Property Growth Fund Sub-
Committee 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes of the meeting held 9th 
February 2021, for information 

 
Other items to be assigned a meeting 
 

Communications Priorities  

Contact Centre – Committee members 
to visit  

 

Waste Bin Replacement Programme 
(from 8/2/21 meeting) 

 

The Head of Workforce and 
Organisational Development be 
requested to prepare a report, to be 

 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Local Government Act Report on the 
Robustness of the Budget 

Budget development and scrutiny 

The Revenue Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Reserves Policy Budget development and scrutiny 

Savings programme – Post Consultation 
Update 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Capital Investment and Disposals 
Strategy 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Treasury Management Strategy Budget development and scrutiny 

Corporate Debt Strategy Budget development and scrutiny 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

Page 17



submitted to a future meeting of the 
Committee, detailing pay and working 
arrangements for senior staff within the 
Council. (from 8/2/21 meeting) 

 

Page 18



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 25th March 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment 
Report Author Jo Oliver 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Update on the Introduction of Charges for New and Replacement Wheeled Bins 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This report gives an update on the introduction of charges for new and 

replacement wheeled bins which went live on Monday 23rd November 2020. 
The report is for information only following a request from the committee that 
an update is provided.  

 

Recommendation 

 
2. A report is brought to this committee in January 2022 when a full twelve 

months of data is available with a further update on number of requests, 
appeals and income received since the start of charges for wheeled bins.  

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Charging for new and replacement wheeled bins was approved at the cabinet 

meeting on 25th August 2020 and introduced on 23rd November 2020. There 
is a requirement for the council to identify savings and potential income 
streams as well as reducing costs against the current financial backdrop. 
There was evidence that the supply of free wheeled bins on request was being 
abused by a minority (but still a significant number) of residents. The impact 
of the charges will be evaluated following 12 months of implementation. 
 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



4.  

 
 
4.1 

Following a report to cabinet on 1 October 2019 on the proposed charges 
for the supply of waste and recycling bins a public consultation was 
undertaken in early 2020. As the introduction of the charge was contentious 
the final decision on implementing the charges was taken to cabinet rather 
than as a delegated decision.  
  

A report was taken to cabinet on 25 August 2020 recommending the 
reintroduction of a charge for new and replacement wheeled bins, both waste 
and recycling bins. The recommendation was approved and it was agreed the 
charge would be £20 per bin. The charge went live on 23 November 2020, a 
briefing note on the charges was sent to members at that time. All councils 
across GM charge for new and replacement refuse (green) bins, the charges 
vary from £15 to £35. Four authorities in GM currently charge for recycling 
bins, from £10 to £30.  
 
There are a number of exemptions for the charge such as if the bin was 
genuinely stolen or vandalised or the resident receives an assisted collection. 
A resident can appeal against the charge and it will be waived if there are 
extenuating circumstances. In some cases a reused clean bin is provided. It 
is important the appeals process is straightforward as the administration of a 
complex process would incur additional costs.  
 
The impact of the charges has reduced demand for bins by 56% compared to 
the same time period in the previous twelve months. The income received to 
date from bin sales is £13K.  
 

 23 Nov 19  to 
21 Feb 20 

23 Nov 20  to 
21 Feb 21 

No of bins 
requested and 
supplied FOC 

2126 606 

No of bins 
requested and 
paid for 

N/A 483 

Total 2126 1089 

  
The appeals process is working well, to date 110 appeals have been made. 
The majority of appeals relate to lost or stolen bins and bins residents believe 
to have been damaged by collection crews. The recycling officers visit the 
area to see if they can locate the missing bin and check camera footage on 
the waste vehicles for evidence of damage by crews. They then update the 
resident on the outcome. 

4.2 

Alternatives Considered 
 
To continue to supply all new and replacement wheeled bins free of charge 
on request with the exception of those purchased by developers. 
 
 
 
   

Page 20



 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. In 2018/19 15,785 requests for wheeled bins were made. The cost to the 

council of purchasing each bin is £18 currently.  This led to a total annual cost 
to the council for purchasing replacement bins of £284k.  
 
Based on current data a 50% reduction in the number of requests for 
replacement bins would reduce this capital budget requirement by 
approximately £142k per annum in a full year. An annual income from bin 
sales of £50k could be expected based on current sales figures.  
 
The income from bin sales to householders, together with income from bin 
sales to developers, will contribute towards achievement of the £189k bin 
sales savings target set during the 2020-21 estimates process.  Achievement 
of this target will be kept under review, with alternative savings potentially 
being required to offset any shortfall. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The introduction of a charge for new and replacement bins has generated 

minimal publicity. It is too early to report if it has discouraged recycling and 
increased contamination.  

  

Consultation 

 
7. Consultation on charging for wheeled bins took place in January 2020 and 

546 responses were received. 63% strongly disagreed with the proposal. 
The reasons most commonly sighted for disagreeing with the proposed 
charge were it was felt unfair, that the cost of bins should be covered by 
council tax and efforts should be concentrated on those who currently abuse 
the system by repeatedly ordering replacement bins. 
 
Pensioners and disabled households were most commonly cited as those 
who should be exempt from paying the charge. Those in receipt of an 
assisted collection are not subject to the charge for replacement bins. 
Residents with extenuating circumstances such as low income can appeal 
against the charge and in these cases the charge is waived.  
 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Report to Cabinet on Proposed 
Changes to Environmental 
Management Services, 25 
August 2020 

ModGov 

 

For Further Information Contact: Jo Oliver, 01706 922097, 
jo.oliver@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 21



 

Page 22



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 25th March 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture 

Report Author Carolyn Whitham 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

1st & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. The report provides Members with a summary of corporate complaints and 

compliments received during the first and second quarters of 2020/21. 
 

Recommendation 

 
2. It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise 

the information contained in the report and assess whether further 
information or explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in 
the report. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the 

Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions 
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



4.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 

The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a 
complaint is “an expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service 
(whether that service is provided directly by the council or by a contractor or 
partner) that requires a response” 
 
In total, 207 new complaints were received during the first half of 2020/21 
across all services.  The majority of the complaints were resolved at stage 
one, with only 10 escalating to stage two and 2 complaints being dealt with at 
stage three.   A total of 135 compliments were received in this reporting period, 
19 of which were Council wide and related to the response to the Covid 19 
pandemic. 
 
There was a marked reduction in the number of complaints received during 
this reporting period compared to the same period last year, and 26% of the 
overall number of complaints received were found to be not upheld. 
 
Lessons learned 
 
Complaints provide the Council with valuable feedback to develop and 
improve our services to meet the needs of our customers.  The following are 
examples of changes made by services in response to feedback from 
residents during this reporting period: 
 
The Environmental Management Service are working to improve the IT 
systems for bulky waste collections which will make it more feasible to check 
for bulky collections in each incidence of waste being reported or observed 
on private property. 
 
Letters relating to the Subject Access Request process were revised to 
provide more clarity with regards to provision of ID whilst Number One 
Riverside was closed due to the coronavirus pandemic. 
 
Checks will be made to ensure trees are Council owned / maintained before 
tree work is undertaken and if not, resident’s permission will be sought 
before work is ordered. 
 
Additional customer service training was provided to officers working on the 
Dippy exhibition during the pandemic. 
 
Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 
 
Details of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman are presented in a 
separate report which is produced on receipt of the Local Government & 
Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
None.  Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system 
used by all services to record complaints and compliments. 

 

Page 24



Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. None of the complaints dealt with in this reporting period had financial 

implications. 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 

report. 
 

 Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from 
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that 
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may result 
in a recommended financial remedy.  Complaints considered by the 
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on 
receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. None   

 

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 25



Appendix 1 

CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 1st & 2nd QUARTERS 2020/21 

 

The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a complaint is “an 

expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service (whether that service is provided 

directly by the council or by a contractor or partner) that requires a response” 

The Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy consists of a three stage process, providing a 

point of appeal at stage three arranged by the Customer Feedback Team for complainants 

who remain dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint to a service. 

 

New complaints received 

 

A total of 207 new complaints were received in the first half of 2020-21. As can be seen from 

the graph below, the number of complaints received by the majority of services increased 

during the second quarter. This follows the usual trend for the Council to receive the lowest 

number of complaints during the first quarter compared to any other time of the year.  The 

number of complaints received during both quarters this year was considerably lower than 

usual. 

 

 

 

Details of the complaints received in the reporting period are included later in the report. 

 

Year on year comparison 

The graph below compares the total number of complaints received in the first half of 2020-
21 with the same period last year.  As can be seen below, the number of complaints 
received by the majority of services during this reporting period reduced compared to the 
previous year.  Of the overall number of complaints received during this reporting period, 
26% were found to be not upheld. 
 

Page 26



Appendix 1 

 

Complaints by Directorate 

 

Details of the nature of complaints received by each Directorate can be found in the following 

tables.  The tables include details of all complaints that were either upheld or partially upheld 

together with the number of complaints that were found to be not upheld.  A number of 

complaints are reported as being ‘out of scope’.  These are complaints where it was 

established that the subject of the complaint was the responsibility of another organisation 

e.g. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing or Riverside Housing and the complaints were referred 

on to be dealt with under the organisation’s own complaints procedure. 

 

AGILISYS 
 

 

 

 
 
 

ECONOMY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Contact Centre Call handling 1 0 

 Advice given / action taken by Advisor 0 1 

 Call waiting times 0 1 

 Not upheld 0 0 

  Total 1 2 

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Economic Affairs Not upheld 1 0 

  Total 1 0 

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Planning Planning enforcement 2 1 

 Lack of response to correspondence 0 1 

  Not upheld 2 7 

  Total 4 9 Page 27



Appendix 1 

 
NEIGHBOURHOODS 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Environmental Management Missed / continual missed bins 26 28 

 Bins not returned to collection point  6 3 

 Replacement caddy liners not left 5 5 

 Grass / shrub maintenance 4 1 

 Fly tipping / enforcement 2 5 

 Actions/attitude of operative 2 8 

 Side waste not removed 1 6 

 Delay in removal of old bin 1 0 

 Debris left after waste collection 1 1 

 Bulky waste collection 1 1 

 Damage to garden from tree cutting 1 0 

 New bin request 1 2 

 Neighbouring bins emptied into one bin 0 3 

 Lack of response to service request 0 2 

 Tree maintenance 0 2 

 Spreading of ashes at crematorium 0 1 

 Bin collection taking place before 7am 0 1 

 Damage to bin 0 1 

 Lack of maintenance of memorial bench 0 1 

 Damage to items on grave 0 1 

 Not upheld 9 6 

 Out of scope of complaints policy 1 2 

 Total 61 80 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Customers & Communities Experience when visiting Dippy exhibition 0 1 

 Not upheld 1 1 

  Total 1 2 

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Highways & Property Poor condition of pavement  1 0 

 Issue caused by blocked gully 1 0 

 Collapsed drain 0 1 

 Disputed land ownership 0 1 

 Installation of pedestrian refuge 0 1 

 Delay in issue of resident’s parking permit 0 1 

 Issues caused by depression in road 0 1 

 Quality of pothole repair 0 1 

 Not upheld  1 3 

 Out of scope of complaints policy 0 6 

  Total 3 15 

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Information Governance Delay in response to enquiry 0 1 

 Not upheld 0 0 

  Total 0 1 

Page 28



Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Public Protection Service received from Pest Control  0 1 

 Not upheld 5 2 

  Total 5 3 

 
RESOURCES 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Revenues & Benefits Blue badge application process 1 0 

 Council Tax payment  0 1 

 Liability for court costs 0 1 

 Not upheld 4 8 

 Out of scope of complaints policy 1 0 

  Total 6 10 

 

Complaint outcomes 

 

The graph below shows the percentage of stage one complaints received that were either 

upheld or partially upheld during the first half of 2020-21. The overall percentage was similar 

for both quarters. 

 

 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 

Strategic Housing Work on derelict property 1 0 

 Housing allocation policy 0 1 

 Not upheld 0 1 

  Total 1 2 

Page 29



Appendix 1 

 

Complaints received by Ward 

 

Numbers of complaints reported by Ward are dependent upon customers providing their 

address details.  The graph below shows the numbers of complaints received by Ward during 

the first half of 2020-21.  It also indicates where address details have not been provided or 

the complainant resides outside of the Borough.  Details of complaints received are provided 

to Ward Councillors on a monthly basis. 

 

 
 

As can be seen from the graph above, there were some fluctuations in the number of 

complaints received from residents in most wards over the two quarters.  There was no 

evident reason for this as the complaints related to a number of different service areas and a 

variety of issues. 

 

Service Requests  

 

A large number of complaints received are in fact service requests.  A service request is an 

initial request for service or report of a fault, for example a report of a missed bin, or a pot 

hole that needs to be repaired.  Details are included below to evidence the very low numbers 

of service requests that subsequently lead to complaints.  For example, the total number of 

complaints received by Environmental Management and Highways in the first half of this year 

was 141 and 18 respectively, however; the number of service requests dealt with by both 

services during the same period was significantly higher. 

 

 

 

 Page 30



Appendix 1 

Highways 

 

Service Area Requests Q1 Requests Q2 

Bridges and Structures 6 8 

Highway Maintenance 501 607 

Network Development 34 42 

Network Management /Traffic/Road Safety 158 193 

Parking Services (including School Crossings) 27 54 

   

Total 726 904 

 

 

Environmental Management 

 

Service Area 
Requests 

Q1 
Requests 

Q2 

New Wheelie bin request 2875 3004 

Missed bin 750 852 

Information/enquiry – street services 44 32 

Fly tipping 2925 1647 

Assisted collection 55 60 

Remove bin 261 440 

Information/enquiry – enforcement 41 78 

Bulky collection 1752 1983 

Tree maintenance 287 278 

Dead animal 43 53 

Dog fouling 44 50 

Other service request – Waste Services 130 223 

Untidy garden 165 285 

Abandoned vehicle  0 0 

Grass/shrub/hedge maintenance 99 216 

Litter bin 60 53 

Spillage on road 16 10 

Graffiti  14 23 

Sharps/drugs/paraphernalia 9 6 

Trade waste 13 15 

Fly posting 11 25 

Ragwort/Knotweed 18 15 

Travellers enquiry  3 2 

Caddy liner request  18 9 

Rights of Way  62 45 

    

Total 9695 9404 

 

 

 Page 31



Appendix 1 

Compliments 

 

In addition to complaints, compliments are also received from customers and shared with the 

teams concerned.  The resident is always thanked for taking the time to contact the Council 

with their comments. 

 

The graph below shows the total number of compliments received during the first half of 2020-

21.   

 

A total of 135 compliments were recorded during the first and second quarters, a selection of 

which can be found below.  19 of the compliments received related to the overall Council 

response to the Covid 19 pandemic rather than individual services. 

 

 

“I would just like to say thank-you to the refuse collection team who have carried on doing an 

outstanding job during this difficult time when other Councils have failed, your service is much 

appreciated by me and my neighbours.” 

 

“I would like to thank Rochdale Council for carrying out their regular services during lockdown. 

The refuse collections have been great, with recycling as usual. The refuse collectors work 

really hard and I consider that we’re very lucky in the Rochdale area. During lockdown, 

workers have been busy, road sweepers, those keeping the grass mown neatly, those 

working on the roads filling in potholes. You have made our area neat and tidy so that we can 

take a pride in it. The gardeners made the most beautiful display of flowers in Jubilee Park, 

a tribute to our wonderful NHS. Thank you so much for all this amazing work during these 

difficult times. I really appreciate it and I’m sure lots of other people in the community do also.” 

 

Page 32



Appendix 1 

“I would like to say a big thank you to the guys at Bowlee nursery for delivering beautiful 

plants and hanging baskets, super service that brought a bit of sunshine to these difficult 

days. Thank you.” 

 

“Resident wished to express his thanks and appreciation for everything that Rochdale 

Council has done since the beginning of the pandemic.  He said that the Council have done 

very well in helping all members of the Borough and should be thanked for everything that 

has been done from meal vouchers to the council tax support. He is very grateful and thinks 

the Council has gone above and beyond to help those in need.” 

“I have nothing but praise for Rochdale Council. I have occasion to phone numerous times 
lately and all my queries were answered, everyone was polite and friendly. What a pleasure!  
Thank you.” 
 
“I would just like to express my appreciation to the Business Team at Rochdale for their 
prompt and helpful communications about the grant for my small business.  There is no need 
to reply to this but please pass on my thanks to them - it makes a very pleasant change to 
find a Local Authority acting in such a helpful and professional manner.” 
 
“I just want to say how helpful the lady in Rochdale Planning was on the phone today - even 
with working from home and suffering connectivity issues she was absolutely lovely and 
demonstrated that Covid working from home you can still provide excellent friendly service. 
Well done! I don't imagine people often praise Planning but I can say she was willing to help 
us at short notice and we really, really appreciated it. Thanks.” 
 

“Just a quick note to day thank you to all the Council workers helping to keep everyone safe 

in these trying times.  Well done for the very clear information and advice on your website.  

Thank you and stay safe everyone.” 

Customer satisfaction with the process 

 

The Customer Feedback Team monitors complaints received and recorded across the 

Council to ensure compliance with complaint policy timescales and consistency in 

implementation of the process. 

 

During the first half of 2020-21, a total of 207 new complaints were received, and of these 

only 10 escalated to the next stage in the complaints process, indicating that the majority of 

customers were satisfied with the response and action taken by the service concerned at the 

lowest level.   

Page 33



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 25 March 2021 
Portfolio Resources & 

Transformation 
Report Author Rebecca Huddleston 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Draft Digital Experience Strategy 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This report provides an update to Members on the progress that has been made in 

developing a digital strategy for the borough.  
 
It sets out the process that we have been though up to now and presents the draft 
digital experience strategy which is now ready to share and engage with key 
stakeholder groups on.  
 
The report also sets out the next steps which are proposed to finalise the strategy 
and to develop a delivery plan which will sit behind the strategy. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. 

 
Members of Overview and Scrutiny are asked to note the report. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

  
 
3. To provide Members with an update on the progress that has been made to develop 

a digital strategy for the borough. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Work to develop a digital strategy for the borough began in 2019 and was supported 

by an independent external consultant who develop the first draft of the strategy. 

In January 2020 an internal engagement session was held on the initial draft strategy. 

This session was attended by colleagues from the Council, CCG, Action Together and 

GMCA and was a really successful and positive session where we: 

a. discussed digital achievements to date; 

b. explored the alignment of the digital strategy to with other priorities and 

programmes across the borough and wider across GM; 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. asked for feedback on the proposed digital priorities; and 

d. discussed how we could best work together to ensure that once a strategy 

was in place, that it can be successfully delivered. 

The plan was to take the feedback from the session and use that to finalise the strategy, 

however following the Covid outbreak in March 2020, the work to finalise the digital 

strategy was put on hold and work to progress and finalise the strategy has only 

recently restarted. 

This report together with the attached draft strategy, provides an overview of the steps 

we have taken since December 2020 to revisit and finalise the strategy and the 

proposed next steps to get the strategy approved and develop a clear delivery plan for 

it. 

 
Developing the Digital Strategy 
 

In December a small working group was established to work together on finalising the 

digital strategy for the borough. This group included representatives from policy, 

transformation and reform, economy, neighbourhoods and Action Together. 

As detailed above we already had a draft strategy and a wealth of feedback on it from 

the engagement session, so this was the starting point. 

It was then important to consider the significant changes in how people and 

organisations have used digital technology and services in the last year due to Covid 

and ensure that we factor in and build upon the advancements in the use and demand 

for digital in developing an aspirational strategy for the borough.  

In addition, in February 2020 Greater Manchester Combined Authority approved a GM 

digital blueprint which sets out priorities and plans and ambitions for GM to be 

recognised as a world leading digital city region. GM have also coordinated work to 

develop and deliver a Covid 19 digital action plan and to establish a GM digital inclusion 

taskforce. 

It has been important to both engage in this wider GM work and ensure that the strategy 

aligns to the GM priorities as appropriate. 

In order to develop our priorities and outcomes, we have tried to access relevant data 

and intelligence to help us understand both the strengths and challenges facing our 

residents and businesses in accessing and using digital technology. However, it soon 

became clear that local data and intelligence is limited. This is not just an issue for 

Rochdale, but one that most areas are facing and it presents a real challenge as we 

seek to address digital exclusion. 

Therefore the priorities have been developed based on an understanding of the issues 

and challenges faced nationally and across GM, together with local anecdotal evidence 

that we have gathered through various community engagement sessions we have had 

in the last year.  

To address this gap going forwards, we are working with a number of other Council’s 

across the county to develop a toolkit which will enable councils to create a baseline of 

who in the borough is experiencing digital exclusion, where they are, what their barriers 

are to accessing services and social contact online, and the interventions that would 

most effectively support them to become more digitally engaged.  This action will form 

Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

part of our delivery plan, and we will use the findings of this to refresh and update the 

digital strategy in summer 2022, 12 months following final approval. 

Work has also been undertaken to gather in examples of achievements we have 

already made and aligning these to the priority areas. We have tried to incorporate 

achievements, not just of work that has been delivered or led by the council, but 

achievements from our partners too, and we will continue to add to these as we further 

engage with partners on this strategy and delivery plan. 

Digital Experience Strategy Overview 
 
The digital experience strategy has been aligned to the Council’s corporate plan and 

our ambitions for our people and place.  Either thematic priority areas have been 

identified under ‘digital people’ and ‘digital places’ as shown in the table below: 

Digital People Digital Places 

 Digital Inclusion 

 Digital Skills 

 Digital Healthcare 

 Digital Interaction 

 Digital Infrastructure 

 Digital Security 

 Digital Public Services 

 Digital Employment and 

Business 

 
The strategy documents sets out what we have achieved so far for each of these priority 

areas as well as the future outcomes we aim to deliver against. It is ambitious and far 

reaching, covering not only how we want to transform how the Council and CCG utilities 

new digital technology to deliver better and more efficient services, but it also aims to 

enable and develop digital skills, digital infrastructure, digital healthcare, and digital 

employment and business across the borough to ensure our communities and 

businesses can take advantage of the benefits that can be delivered through fast and 

secure digital infrastructure and technology. 

We want everyone to have a positive digital experience. The Council is committed to 

creating a digital infrastructure that will provide fast and responsive public services 

across our borough, keep communities connected and promote digital security. We aim 

to improve the digital skills of our citizens, increase digital awareness and digital access 

and support businesses and employment in the digital sector. The Covid-19 pandemic 

has led to a surge in the use of digital technologies and has created potential for new 

ways of work and life. We will build on those opportunities, improving our place and 

people’s lives through digital transformation. 

Next steps 
 

The draft digital experience strategy is being presented to a number of different 

meetings during March in order to raise awareness, request feedback and support and 

to encourage engagement in the development of the delivery plan. 

Also during March, an equality impact assessment will be developed for the new digital 

experience strategy to ensure that we consider the impact on protected and vulnerable 

groups in terms of adverse impact, discrimination, addressing health inequalities and 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. 
 
 

health disparities. This will also be kept under review and revisited as the delivery plan 

is developed. 

The look of strategy document will also be reviewed, the current layout just being a 

draft as the content is finalised. As a public facing document which sets out high 

aspirations for the borough the strategy will require a high quality, professional and 

accessible design which will spark interest and excite all stakeholder groups and ages 

with the potential that the strategy can deliver for the borough. 

Once the strategy has been to Cabinet the next step will be to establish a system wide 

digital experience steering group which will be tasked with developing a delivery plan 

which will sit behind the strategy. This will involve capturing existing and identifying new 

projects which will deliver the outcomes in the strategy. It will also incorporate a specific 

and separate digital inclusion plan. 

The delivery plan will incorporate activity from a range of partner organisations across 

the borough and beyond, as this strategy cannot be achieved through could activity 

alone. It will be need to be delivered in partnership to be successful. As part of this we 

will engage with and seek senior level system wide support from the strategic place 

board.  

It is hoped that this work to develop the delivery plan and make any final changes to 

the strategy can be completed in approximately three months, and that they can be 

presented to Cabinet for approval in July 2021. 

Once in place the role of the steering group will be to oversee, support and provide 

constructive challenge in the delivery of the strategy and projects within the delivery 

plan. 

There will be costs in delivering the digital strategy and plan and equally the projects 

will generate savings and wider benefits. As these become clear, they will also be 

presented to the steering group in the first instance, and then escalated to the most 

appropriate place as required. 

Finally, it will be important to raise awareness and promote the digital engagement 

strategy both internally and externally through an initial launch and then an ongoing 

communications campaign that will be developed which while recognising the 

Council’s leadership role, will be a system wide campaign which all partners and 

stakeholders can engage with.   

 
Alternatives Considered: 

 
 
The draft digital strategy does show that we can already point to achievements in all 
of the thematic areas proposed, therefore an alternative could be to continue as we 
are, but without a strategy.  
 
This option has been discounted as it is considered that by setting a clear vision, 
priorities and outcomes that we want to achieve, a strategy will help us to better focus 
our resources and prioritise work in the areas that most need to be addressed. In 
addition it will provide a clear narrative for us to be able to engage and collectively 
work with our partners and communities. 

  
 
 

Page 37



 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
 
9. 

 
As detailed in the report it is likely that there will be costs associated with the 
delivery of this strategy, however until the deliver plan is developed we cannot give 
an indication of what these might be or how they will be funded. 
 
Any actions or projects which are included in the delivery plan, will require a 
business case which will set out any financial implications, together with any 
savings or wider benefits which are expected to be achieved  

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
10. The digital strategy aligns to the Council’s corporate plan priorities of people and 

place and has taken into consideration the Greater Manchester Digital Blueprint 
and digital inclusion work. 
 
There are clear risks of not having a digital strategy and a clear plan for how we 
are going to address issues like the digital divide and also lead to missed 
opportunities such as attracting digital businesses to the borough if we don’t have a 
clear and targeted plan to improve the boroughs infrastructure, connectivity and 
skills. 
 
These risks and more will be considered as part of work to carry out an equality 
impact assessment which is taking place this month.  
 

Consultation 

 
11. 
 

Consultation on the initial draft strategy was carried out with a wide range of 
stakeholders in January 2020. Over the next month the draft strategy is being 
presented to a range of internal meetings to start to engage a range of 
stakeholders in finalising the strategy and to encourage them to engage in the 
development of the delivery plan which will take place over the next few months. 
 
A draft engagement plan has been also been developed. It aims to use a 
cooperative engagement approach which will help us to inform, involve and 
collaborate with our communities as we finalise the plan and develop the delivery 
plan. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
12. There are no background papers to 

this report. 
N/A 

 

For Further Information Contact: Rebecca Huddleston 
Rebecca.huddleston@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 925058 
 
Or  
 

Page 38

mailto:Rebecca.huddleston@rochdale.gov.uk


Caroline Wolfenden 
Caroline.wolfenden@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924734 

 

Page 39

mailto:Caroline.wolfenden@rochdale.gov.uk


Digital Experience 

Strategy 2021 - 2024

P
age 40



The future growth of our borough relies upon making more

and better use of the opportunities that digital innovation and

transformation provides. A digital place is one that utilises

new technologies and systems. Digital people are able to

take advantage of those new technologies and better their lives.

Our Priorities: Digital People and Places

P
age 41



People are

protected

People are

resilient
People are

healthy

Peoplefulfil

their potential

Place is

inclusive

Place

supports

sustainable

growth

Councillor Carol Wardle

Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Delivery,

Rochdale Borough 

Council

We want everyone to have a positive digital 

experience. The Council is committed to 

creating a digital infrastructure that will 

provide fast and responsive public services 

across our borough, keep communities 

connected and promote digital security. We 

aim to improve the digital skills of our citizens, 

increase digital awareness and digital access 

and support businesses and employment in 

the digital sector. The Covid-19 pandemic has 

led to a surge in the use of digital 

technologies and has created potential for 

new ways of work and life. We will build on 

those opportunities, improving our place and 

people’s lives through digital transformation 

Introduction

Doctor Chris Duffy

Chair of Heywood, 

Middleton and 

Rochdale Clinical 

Commissioning Group

Transforming health and care through 

technology has the potential to deliver better 

outcomes for patients and citizens. We will 

empower people to make healthy choices by 

enabling digital access to health and care 

information and we will support independent 

living through digital products and services. 

We will use systems, technology and 

processes to deliver seamless care across all 

health and care settings, offering a mix of 

online, telephone and face to face access. 

We will also analyse data to better inform 

policy, preventions and treatments and build 

public trust and confidence in how health 

services look after and use patient 

information. 

Kerry Bertram

Rochdale Strategic 

Locality Lead, 

Action Together

There is a gap that exists between individuals, 

households, businesses and geographic areas 

at different socio-economic levels with regard 

to their opportunities to access information and 

communication technologies (ICT) and using 

the internet for a variety or activities. The 

‘digital divide’ contributes to the inequality of 

access to goods and services available 

through technology, for example computers 

and the internet provide users with improved 

education, which can lead to higher wages. 

Those without access are at a disadvantage. 

Voluntary, Community, Faith and Social 

Enterprise sector (VCFSE) is committed to 

helping close the digital divide that exists 

across our borough.

P
age 42



Digital challenges and drivers for change

17.4% of adults in Rochdale 
have not been online

1 in 3 local businesses 

don’t have a website

Digital employers are 

constrained by a lack 

local skills and talent

26% of adults in 

Rochdale don’t have all 
five basic digital skills

Rising demand on 

public services
Rise in cyber crime

Digital sector is 

growing at pace

Need to reduce the cost of 

delivering services

P
age 43



People are

protected

People are

resilient
People are

healthy

Peoplefulfil

their potential

Place is

inclusive

Place

supports

sustainable

growth

igital exclusion, data poverty and the digital divide 

A significant proportion of the population is 

digitally excluded because they lack internet 

access and/or have low levels of digital skills. 

Some of the reasons for digital exclusion are 

age, low income, disabilities, learning 

difficulties, ethnic origin, location, culture and 

language. 

As services start to move online more and 

more, significant numbers of people might miss 

out because they can’t or don’t have the 

motivation to engage in this new digital world. 

Digital exclusion is not new, but the pandemic 

has highlighted that it is a growing problem.

Vital services such as education, welfare, health and work are now online. 

Digital transformation is taking place because it enables services to be 

delivered more efficiently, at less cost, with less effort and in a joined up way. 

It is also thought that digital optimises the customer experience because 

people can access services in ways that suit them and how they live.

However those that cannot use or access digital will be less able to obtain 

digital information, shop online, participate democratically, or learn skills and 

offer skills. Those who cannot access enough data for their needs are data 

poor and living in Data Poverty.

We recognise that people that are digitally excluded are likely to be 

disproportionately heavy users of public services. For example those 

seeking help with benefits are unlikely to have access to a computer 

because they can’t afford it, yet they need to make a claim online.

Our digital experience strategy is about focusing on people first. 

Understanding the reasons why they are excluded from technology and 

putting in place interventions to enhance digital inclusion and close the 

digital divide. 

P
age 44



Improve our place and people’s lives through digital transformation

Digital 

Public Services
Digital Business 

and Employment 

Digital

Healthcare 

Digital 

Infrastructure

Digital 

Interaction

Digital 
Inclusion

Digital People Digital Places

Digital 

Skills 

Digital 

Security

Our vision: Improve our place and people’s lives 

through digital transformation 

P
age 45



We want everyone to have a positive 

digital experience. Citizens will have the 

opportunity to access technology and the 

basic skills to use it. They will feel 

confident and safe in using online services 

and motivated to use digital to manage 

their lives. Digital will benefit their health 

and wellbeing, education, employment, 

social interaction and communication. 

Nobody will be excluded from our digital 

journey, support will be provided where 

citizens have specific needs or digital isn’t 

the appropriate solution.

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Inclusion

P
age 46



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Inclusion: Future outcomes

Everyone has the opportunity to use digital 

equipment and technology and get online 

Buildings across the borough used as digital 

hubs

Everyone knows how to be safe online and 

access support

Everyone is motivated to get online because 

they understand how it could be relevant and 

helpful and they are confident in using digital to 

meet their needs, manage their lives and reap 

the time and cost benefits of online services

Digital will complement other forms of customer 

access where transactions still require human 

interaction

Digital Inclusion: Achievements and progress 

• Our libraries are now digital hubs with 262 

computers and free Wifi across all 16 and self 

scanning in 3. There’s space for people to use their 

own laptops

• DigiTech library established in partnership with VCS 

and the Council to enable citizens to borrow digital 

equipment including tablets and laptops. Currently 

40 devices available with funding to purchase more. 

• College Bank/Falinge residents offered free internet 

access via a “Mesh Network” 

P
age 47



We want to encourage all age groups to 

develop basic digital skills to support them 

in getting online. We want to inspire people 

to pursue careers in the digital sector, 

undertaking learning at school or retraining 

to enhance their job prospects and to help 

us address digital skills shortages.

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Skills

P
age 48



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Skills: Future outcomes

People have all 5 basic digital skills (communicating, 

handling information & content, transacting, problem 

solving, being safe and legal online)

More people directed and supported into digital 

occupations via the school curriculum and by having 

access to equipment to develop programming and 

hardware skills

Citizens helping others to develop their digital skills 

and access online services (learner led approach)

Local employers retraining and reskilling their 

workforces in digital skills and capabilities 

More young people with digital equipment and 

connectivity to support home learning

Digital Skills: Achievements and progress

• Digital training sessions available in local libraries, at 

least one session per week with an average 

attendance of 15 people – general skills, family 

history sessions, coding etc.

• Google digital garage bus visited the borough offering 

free workshops and face-to-face coaching

• Heritage Hackers supporting the DigiTech library to 

fix/update donated digital equipment which can then 

be “gifted” to residents. Residents will also be taught 

to fix / update these devices.

• Crescent Radio and Employment Links Partnership 

delivering digital skills programme. Deeplish

Community Centre providing digital skills support 

within the local community with a plan to improve 

English and maths skills as a progression pathway. 

P
age 49



We want to transform heath and care 

through technology. We will use digital 

processes, equipment and data to enable 

seamless delivery of health and care 

services and to support people in 

monitoring and managing their own health 

and wellbeing. We will also use digital to 

advance health policy, preventions and 

treatments, leading to better outcomes for 

residents and patients. 

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Healthcare

P
age 50



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Healthcare: Future outcomes

More people practicing self care by accessing health 

and care services online and through digital 

applications

People getting the right care, first time because 

health records, plans and preferences are integrated 

across all services and can be accessed in real time

Less administration for healthcare professionals and 

more efficient services for patients through digital 

bookings, referrals and prescribing systems

More people using assistive technologies and remote 

monitoring for tracking wellbeing, rehabilitation and 

independent living 

Data tools being used to support health research, 

clinical trials and identifying people at greatest risk

Digital Healthcare: Achievements and progress

• Over the last 12 months the CCG and Adult Care has 

been trialling the Orcah application which helps people 

to maintain independence in their own home

• Shared care record implemented across health and 

care services to store adult patient/resident data in one 

place, improving data accessibility for GP’s, district 

nurses, social workers etc.

P
age 51



We want to ensure that everyone in the 

borough, whatever their age, location or 

situation can use digital technology to 

interact with others, participate in civic and 

community life, stay informed, 

communicate and engage in learning and 

cultural activities and experiences. 

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Interaction

P
age 52



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Interaction: Future outcomes

Communities using digital platforms to engage with 

one another and mobilise action in their local area

People accessing information about local services 

from online directories

People utilising digital tools to give feedback or to take 

part in consultation and decision making processes

People engaging with culture, heritage and 

arts through online experiences

People kept informed and able to connect through 

digital communications 

Digital Interaction: Achievements and progress

• Council’s website consistently ranked in the Top 10 of 

public sector websites. On average Council social 

media posts reach over 352,000 people

• Four successful Digital Festivals. In 2019 20 

businesses had a presence and there were over 650 

visitors

• Over 3500 residents are signed up to the Council’s 

electronic communication platform

• Dippy Dinosaur exhibition was delivered online during 

COVID-19. 4,324 hits on the virtual tour page, with 

page views for the Dippy at home activities. Around 

400 children took part in Zoom online activities. 

• Digital kiosks will be implemented in libraries to enable 

people to use digital in a private setting 

P
age 53



We want all areas of the borough to have 

increased and reliable mobile coverage 

and faster broadband connectivity to meet 

the increasing demands for digital access 

and use across homes, businesses, public 

services and transport networks.

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Infrastructure

P
age 54



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Infrastructure: Future outcomes

Digital systems across our public transport networks 

to support smarter travel 

Using data platforms to gather intelligence about user 

experiences to inform planning and development of 

services that meet local needs

Improving availability and reliability of broadband and 

mobile access through 5G and full fibre

Improving accessibility through free Wifi in town 

centres and public buildings

Expanding mobile working systems to enable 

integrated partnership working

Digital Infrastructure: Achievements so far

• Over 98.1% of Rochdale is connected for superfast 

broadband

• Rates of full fibre connectivity, which can deliver 

speeds up to 300Mbps, are significantly higher in 

Rochdale (8.3%) than the UK average (6.3%). The 

borough is ranked number 1 for Wireless Telecoms 

Activities across Greater Manchester (GM)

• 99 sites hosting council services are benefitting from 

the GM full fibre project and have higher speed 

connectivity (up from 2% to 25%). All 6 integrated 

health and social care teams are benefitting from the 

full fibre project

• Rochdale has been invited to be an early adopter of the 

GM One Network which will provide council and health 

and care staff the ability to log into one network to 

better support integrated working

P
age 55



We want citizens and businesses to feel 

safe when using digital services and 

understand how to protect themselves, 

their networks and data against cyber 

crime. We will ensure that public sector 

systems that hold public data are secure 

and private so that people have absolute 

confidence in what’s happening to their 

information.

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Security

P
age 56



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Security: Future outcomes

People are aware of internet harms so that they can 

protect themselves from cyber crime

Storage, sharing and access to public data is secure 

and private

Local businesses are taking protective measures 

against threats to their networks and devices

Local businesses abiding by Best Practice Security 

Standards 

Local businesses have cyber essential plus 

accreditation 

Digital Security: Achievements

• The Council is Public Service Network accredited

• The Council has accreditation to act as a bureau for 

processing online payments

• The Council has Cyber Essentials plus accreditation

• The Council has a dedicated ICT Security Manager 

to maintain our systems, particularly those that store 

public data, to ensure personal details are kept safe

P
age 57



We want to lead by example in maximising 

the use of innovative technology to 

improve services. We will make processes 

more efficient, and ensure our staff have 

the tools and skills to enable them to work 

smarter.

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Public Services

P
age 58



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Public Services: Future outcomes

Public sector workforces have core digital skills and 

frontline workers able to help citizens develop their 

own skills

Digital good help embedded across public services to 

ensure those at risk of being excluded are supported 

to use digital in a positive way 

Internal processes digitized and automated to 

improve speed and accuracy of common tasks, 

technology used to enable remote working and 

people self serving through digital platforms

Machine learning being used to provide data insights 

to support decision making 

Digital Public Services: Achievements and progress

• Over 80 council services supported by electronic-forms to 

enable residents to report, request and pay online. Over 

44,000 registered users for MyAccount. Revenues and 

Benefits service almost fully digital, meaning processes 

from beginning to end are supported by digital solutions.

• Walk-in enquiries down by 75%. Call handling times 

reduced by over 10,000 minutes per month and call costs 

reduced to £4.30 per call. Customer satisfaction at 98%

• During the pandemic the number of active users of library 

eBook and Audiobook services increased by 45%. We 

are implementing out of hours access in branches and 

Wifi printing

• 2475 laptops and 1658 mobile phones provided to council 

staff and MS Teams deployed across Council and CCG to 

enable remote working. Cloud first approach adopted for 

applications and software to support business continuity

P
age 59



We want the borough to be an attractive 

place for digital businesses, offering high 

speed connectivity, local digital talent and 

a range of support. We will encourage and 

support businesses of all types and sizes 

to digitise their business and make the 

most of the opportunities that this brings. 

We will encourage interest in science, 

technology, engineering and mathematics 

subjects (STEM) to facilitate careers in the 

digital sector.

Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Business and 

Employment

P
age 60



Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Business and Employment: Future outcomes

More digital businesses relocating, starting up or 

expanding in the borough, creating employment 

opportunities

Digital enterprise at the heart of community wealth and 

social value to help grow the local economy

More investment and funding for digital initiatives in the 

borough

Businesses receiving advice and support about 

revolutionsing their operations and processes through 

use of digital technologies  

Under represented groups progressing in STEM so 

that businesses have access to a diverse pool of local 

digital talent 

Digital Business and Employment: 

Achievements and progress

• There are many business in Rochdale that are 

connected into the digital services offered by the 

Business Growth Hub including Digital and Creative 

Tech – 33 firms and Digital Innovation – 93 firms

• Rochdale is home to Zen Internet, a digital start up that 

is now one of the Sunday Times 100 best companies to 

work for

• Rochdale saw a 168% increase in digital start ups 

between 2016 and 2018 (from 91 to 244)

P
age 61



Our digital ways of working

Start with user needs

We will talk to users to understand their diverse needs so that the 

right services can be provided now and in the future

Think broader

We will develop and build platforms, systems and tools that can 

be used by other organisations and partners

Design with Data

We will use analytics to drive design, build and testing processes 

for any digital initiatives that are implemented

Make it Simple
We will ensure services are easy and simple for citizens to use 

of any digital skill level. They will initially be built on a small 

scale to allow for user testing and refining once they are live

Understand the customer journey

We will design services to fit with people’s lifestyles 

and how they want to experience digital

Make it for everyone

We will ensure services are inclusive and will help those 

who find using our services the hardest to get the support 

they need. We will think about those people from the start

Focus on results

We will deliver digital services that enhance a persons life 

or life chances

Be open 

We will share ideas, learning, success and failures to 

support ongoing digital innovation and transformation

Pioneering Digital: Our ways of working

P
age 62



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 25th March 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate Delivery, 
Cabinet Member for 
Quality of Place 

Report Author Ben Jorgensen 
Public/Private Document Public  

 

 

Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21: 
Quarter 3 Performance Update 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 

2020) towards achievement of the targets contained in the Resources 
Directorate Plan 2020-21 and Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) 
Directorate Plan 2020-21. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report 

and the appendices. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be 
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each 
quarter.  
 
The Quarter 3 progress reports for the Resources Directorate and 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate are attached at Appendix 1 
and 2 respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria: 
 
Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control  
Green: Action completed by the target date  
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track 
 
The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
87% (26) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are 
ongoing. Two actions are not fully complete and the action due date has 
now passed. One action is now complete and one further action will not be 
completed and deferred to next year due to the pandemic. The chart below 
shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets 
at the end of Quarter 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarter 3 Summary 
 
Canvass reform has been successfully implemented, annual canvass 
process conducted successfully and revised annual register of electors has 
been published on 1st December 2020. 
 
As part of the action to review and evaluate decision making structure for 
Joint Health Arrangements a working group has been established consisting 
of Governance Officers from Council, CCG and LCO with the aim of 
improving shared knowledge, communication and work practices. Solutions 
are being identified and worked through. 
 
The Council’s Organisational Development plan continues to be developed 
and delivered. Academy Cohort 3 further modules have been delivered and 
planned: Equality & Diversity, conducting Difficult Conversations, Systems 
thinking, Health & Safety. The Aspiring Leaders Programme pilot is now 

Page 64



 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

complete and a New Managers Programme underway. Preparations for 
leadership Conference are progressing well.  
 
The updated financial strategy for the 5 year Children’s Strategy is to be 
discussed at the next meeting at the end of January. There are KPI’s in 
place to monitor the impact of staff retention incentives and key innovation 
targets that align with the strategy. Agency staffing has increased due to 
increased referrals into the service, additional social workers have been 
recruited to reduce caseloads to a safe level.  
 
The Council’s Customer Transformation Programme has progressed well 
during Q3. An existing internal resource has been appointed as the new 
programme manager for the programme and has been busy developing 
relationships with all project leads and wider stakeholders. He has reviewed 
and strengthened the governance arrangements for the programme as well 
as setting expectations for ways of working. Work continues to progress well 
in each of the project areas for example the new eForms solution has 
already been used successfully to support people to check eligibility and 
apply for test and trace support payments. 
 
Work to develop a digital strategy has progressed in quarter three, with 
actions and draft timescales to finalise, consult and seek approval for the 
strategy being reviewed together with consideration of the skills and 
capacity to take this work forwards. 
 
The proposal to establish a local authority lottery has been further 
considered by Members, who agreed not to progress with the proposal at 
this time. Following the end of Q3 the progress made by the temporary 
sponsorship post will be reviewed, in order to support the further 
consideration of the potential role and benefit of extending this role beyond 
the town hall restoration scheme.  
 
The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed 
(Amber) relate to: 
 

 Development of a Digital Strategy 
 Development and approval of a corporate approach to sponsorship 

 
The action that will not be complete this financial year relates to: 
 

 Understand business rates and council tax avoidance, how can these 
be minimised and income maximised – delayed due to significant 
additional work in Revenues & Benefits as part of the Covid response 

 
 
 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 2020-21 
Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 

Page 65



 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 
 
4.15 
 
 
 
 
 

70% (7) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are ongoing. 
Two actions are not fully complete and the action due date has now passed. 
One action is now complete. The chart below shows the overall performance 
of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed 
(Amber) relate to: 
 

 Finalise and commence delivery of the Climate Change Strategy 
 Transform and improve customer and digital provision 

 
Quarter 3 Summary 
 
The Electoral Review for Rochdale is currently in the second consultation 
phase. The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) 
responded to our ward proposals and put forward suggested changes 
regarding the boundaries which can be consulted on by residents up to 8th 
February 2021. We will be informed by the LGBCE on May 11th regarding 
the final boundaries.  
 
Initial internal discussions with members and leadership have taken place to 
establish and agree objectives and priorities regarding the development of a 
new Communications Strategy (2020-23). Unfortunately Consultation 
sessions have been delayed at present due to Covid-19 work commitments. 
 

As part of the action to co-ordinate the roll out of Public Service Reform 
across the borough a partnership has been put in place (Public Services 
Reform steering group) and main governance structures have been aligned.  
Ongoing reform activity now fits within this structure. Good Help and MEAM 
(Make Every Adult Matter) service models Q3 activity is complete.  This has 
included specific work linked to the Pandemic along with aligning MHCLG 
Community Champions funding with new service model development.  An 

Page 66



 
 
 
 
4.16 
 

audit of cases across Adult Social Care, Place Teams and Focused Care 
Workers is expected in early 2021. 
 

The Climate Emergency Working Group will look to establish an action plan 
of priority work for the Climate Change Strategy; with the budget being 
allocated accordingly. The Council has set aside £1m over 5 years. Some of 
the money has already been used to support the recruitment of a Climate 
Change Project Manager and there is an intention to use some funds to help 
roll out the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (a funding bid has been 
submitted via GMCA to support implementation of energy efficiency 
measures on public buildings). How much we have been awarded will be 
announced in mid-late February (up to £11 million). The Climate Emergency 
working group was established in January - stakeholder invitation letters 
have been issued.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Not applicable 

 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.   None 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. None 
  

 

Consultation 

 
7. Not required 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Appendix 1 -  Resources 
Directorate Plan 2020-21 Q3 
 
Appendix 2 – Neighbourhoods 
(Corporate) Directorate Plan 
2020-21 Q3 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 67



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

R2001 Implementation of Canvass Reform 31 December 2020   100% 

Canvass reform successfully implemented, annual canvass process conducted successfully and revised annual register of electors published on 1 December 2020 

 

  

R2002 Contribution to Local Government Boundary Commission for England Electoral Review 31 March 2021   80% 

Draft recommendations received from LGBCE on 1 December. Revised maps circulated to Cross Member Working Party and meeting recommenced. Further submissions 
to be made by elected members, political parties and individuals. Public consultation underway until 8 February 2021 and final recommendations will be published by 
LGBCE on 11 May 2021. Amendments to electoral register and implementation of the new ward boundaries will follow the final recommendations. 

  

R2003 To strengthen governance arrangements across the organisation at service level 31 March 2021   30% 

We have seen a big increase in the number of items being included on the forward plan. Adult Care and Resources scheme of delegations complete. Economy and 
Neighbourhoods Directorates will start in January 2021. 

          

R2004 Health and Social Care - Review and evaluation of decision making structure for Joint Health 
Arrangements 

31 March 2021   50% 

A working group has been established consisting of Governance Officers from Council, CCG and LCO with the aim of improving shared knowledge, communication and 
work practices. Solutions are being identified and worked through. 

  

P
age 68



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2005 Refresh and support the Member Development Programme 31 March 2021   40% 

The task & finish group continues its work. Next meeting in January 2021 will determine how many more meetings are required. Expect to be completed for roll out in 
new municipal year. 

  

R2006 Develop the use of the iTrent HR system to maximise customer experience and enhance 
organisational performance including integration with financial system 

31 March 2021   45% 

On-line DDM - interim workaround still being piloted due to low numbers submitted. IT spec for final solution being drawn up. Project to move iTrent to cloud hosted by 
MHR progressing well. Testing underway and a live date is planned for 1 Feb 2021. Moving to cloud hosted will also open up ESS to staff without a network account, e.g. 
EM & FM. Work to move L4L to MSS still on pause as technical issues not resolved and still under investigation by supplier. Schools Workforce Census functionality 
successfully implemented and used for 2020 Census. 

          

R2007 Develop and deliver the Council’s Organisational Development plan to maximise potential and 
performance of workforce 

31 March 2021   75% 

Academy Cohort 3 further modules delivered and planned: Equality & Diversity, conducting Difficult Conversations, Systems thinking, Health & Safety. Aspiring Leaders 
Programme pilot complete. New Managers Programme underway. Preparations for leadership Conference progressing. Delve / PDR training for resource Directorate 
managers scheduled for completion in January. Workforce planning activity underway in Resources, Neighbourhoods, Adult care and Children's Services (Youth Service). 
Team development relating to Resilience & wellbeing delivered in Public Health, Public Protection, ICD, Early Years & Early help 

          

R2008 Develop and deliver Locality Workforce Strategy to support health and care integration and wider 
Public Sector Reform 

31 March 2021   75% 

P
age 69



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

System leadership to be picked up following leadership Academy input in January 2021, further work with ICD SMT and individual teams ongoing including Resilience and 
Wellbeing and change management support (Full bridging team. Support for locality teams in EY&EH - change management process. Bespoke events for Rochdale, 
Pennine and Middleton Locality teams. 

  

R2009 Support the development and delivery of the 5 year Children’s Strategy in conjunction with 
Finance 

31 March 2021   75% 

The updated financial strategy to be discussed at the next meeting at the end of Jan. There are KPI’s in place to monitor the impact of staff retention and key innovation 
targets that align with the strategy. Agency has increased due to increased referrals into the service, additional social workers have been recruited to reduce caseloads to 
a safe level. These posts are charged to the covid cost centre and are having a positive impact as cared for numbers remain quite static. 

          

R2010 To undertake a full service review of council priorities to ensure that legal services has the 
capacity and skill set to meet the Council’s priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan 

31 March 2021   25% 

Meeting held with AD's and further meetings with team leaders arranged. Unfortunately the original meetings could not take place for reasons beyond our controls. 

  

R2011 To undertake a review of Lexcel best practice to ensure higher standards of delivery of legal 
services with a view to obtaining accreditation in 2021/22 

31 March 2021   30% 

We have completed a review of all internal documents. We had hoped to obtain a copy of a manual from a neighbouring authority but this has not been shared. New 
manual to be prepared in draft form by end of January 2021. 

  

P
age 70



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2012 To introduce a new case management system to streamline processes and increase productivity 
and efficiency 

31 March 2021   50% 

Work is continuing and we appear to be ahead of current targets. We had some hiccups involving ICT but these have been addressed. We appear to be on track to go live 
mid-March 2021. 

          

R2013 Review of existing shared services arrangements and identify and progress any opportunities for 
new shared services 

31 March 2021   35% 

The proof of concept to review one of our shared services has not progressed in Q3 as anticipated, and instead will be carried out and completed during Q4. 

  

R2014 Development of the public service reform steering group and strategic place board to effectively 
drive system wide public service reform in Rochdale and build on what has been achieved through the 
response to Covid-19 

 31 March 2021   40% 

A further PSR Steering Group was held in November, with the agenda continuing to be responsive and reflective of the impact and system wide response to Covid. In 
addition the Recovery and Resilience Coordination Group, which has been working to develop a system wide recovery / living with covid plan has been put on hold as 
resources continue to be focused on the response. It is intended to review this situation with the Joint Leadership Team in Q4. 

          

R2015 Implementation of hand held technology in Children’s services 31 March 2021   5% 

This project remains on hold while Children's services continue to focus their attention on supporting schools and dealing with increased demand for social care which is 
being exacerbated due to Covid. However, the Director of Children's services has asked that this project remains on the transformation work plan and is supportive of 
progressing this project as soon as capacity allows. At this point we are unable to estimate a revised start date for this work. 

          

P
age 71



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2016 Delivery of the Council’s Customer Transformation Programme 31 March 2021   60% 

The programme has progressed well during Q3. An existing internal resource has been appointed as the new programme manager for the programme and has been busy 
developing relationships with all project leads and wider stakeholders. He has reviewed and strengthened the governance arrangements for the programme as well as 
setting expectations for ways of working. Work continues to progress well in each of the project areas for example the new eForms solution has already been used 
successfully to support people to check eligibility and apply for test and trace support payments. 

          

R2017 Progress opportunities to improve service delivery and deliver recurrent savings through contract 
renewals 

 31 March 2021   35% 

A decision has been made at the STAR board that STAR will procure the 'Intend' contract management system, which will then be used by all STAR authorities. Following 
this an initial meeting has been held with leads from each authority and STAR to start discussing the project and approach to implementing the new software. A project 
plan has yet to be provided, however further project meetings are in diaries to progress this in Q4. 

          

R2018 Development of a Digital Strategy 31 October 2020   70% 

Work to develop a digital strategy has progressed in quarter 3, with actions and draft timescales to finalise, consult and seek approval for the strategy being reviewed 
together with consideration of the skills and capacity to take this work forward. 

          

R2019 Development and approval of a corporate approach to sponsorship 30 June 2020   80% 

The proposal to establish a local authority lottery has been further considered by Members, who agreed not to progress with the proposal at this time. Following the end 
of Q3 the progress made by the temporary sponsorship post will be reviewed, in order to support the further consideration of the potential role and benefit of extending 
this role beyond the town hall restoration scheme. 

          

P
age 72



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2020 Progress AI/Automation opportunities 31 March 2021   70% 

Really good progress has been made in Q3. Procurement of an AI technology solution and delivery partner has taken place and the project has started. The initial area of 
focus is on processes within the Revenues and Benefits service. A number of high volume transactional processes carried out by the service have been analysed and 
prioritised for automation. The first process which has been selected for automation is invoice processing and work has started to map out the current process. This work 
will continue in Q4. During the next reporting period we expect to be able to complete the automation of the invoice processing process and develop a roadmap setting 
out the potential to roll out this technology further across the organisation. 

          

R2021 Support the development and delivery of the Dedicated Schools Grant recovery plan 31 March 2021   75% 

Schools Forum agreed the plan at October forum, they have agreed the 0.5% transfer for the length of the plan – subject to annual approval by forum. Recovery plan will 
continue to be under review and DfE are looking to address the national pressure in High Needs Block whilst talking with LAs. Pressures will ease in Rochdale with the 
opening of the new school in September 2022. 

          

R2022 Development of an Adult Care financial strategy 31 March 2021   50% 

The draft 21/22 budget is addressing some of the financial pressures being experienced by the service whilst a formal strategy is being agreed. A final report has been 
agreed which is going to Joint Leadership Team for discussion. It should be noted this work will continue into 2021/22. 

          

R2023 Development of a balanced pooled fund and understanding the financial implications of the Local 
Care Organisation 

31 March 2021   75% 

Monthly pooled fund meetings have been re-established with key members being the Accountable Officer, Chief Finance Officers, Joint Director of Integrated 
commissioning and the Director of Resources. This group is understanding the potential pooled fund pressures for 21/22 and looking at savings opportunities to bridge 
this financial pressure. 

          

P
age 73



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2024 Development of an integrated risk management approach for the Council and CCG 31 March 2021   50% 

Confirmation received in correspondence with CCG that they are committed to transferring their risks to the joint Pentana system. The RBC Risk Manager is meeting CCG 
on 21/01//21 to progress discussions realignment of RBC/CCG risk processes. 

          

R2025 Adult care fee negotiation is developed over an agreed time period to deliver the living wage 31 March 2021   80% 

At October ICB it was approved that the RLW based rate would be supported via use of one off funds from the H&SC reserve across 2021/22 and 2022/23. Adult Care has 
consulted with providers on the proposed fees and will be reporting the outcome to ICB in January. 

          

R2026 Development of the budget setting process to ensure plans are robust and the implications of the 
fair funding review are fully understood 

31 March 2021   70% 

Savings proposals have been discussed by Cabinet, with green proposals going forward for consultation 4th Jan - 17th Feb. Provisional settlement has been received and 
reported to Cabinet on 21st December. 

          

R2027 Further development of investment/liability risk analysis to cover emerging invest to save 
schemes outside the Property Growth Fund, ensuring investment decisions are taken with a Council-
wide view of risk 

31 March 2021   60% 

The performance and risk of the Property Growth Fund for 2020/21 will be presented to the Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee in January 2021. A detailed risk 
register for the Property Growth Fund has been completed and will be shared with the PGF Steering Group/Sub-Committee at the next available opportunity. Financial 
risks relating to Covid-19 have been identified, quantified and included in the Councils Corporate C-19 Financial Risk Register. 
 
Work is underway in respect of the possible delivery structures for Rochdale Riverside 2/Project Neighbourhoods and the identification of implications for each, including 
financial/tax implications. This will be reported to the next Steering Group.  
 

P
age 74



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Financial modelling on the Rochdale Riverside retail & leisure scheme has been revised and updated (including a financial assessment of proposed new leases) and the 
overall financial projections reported to relevant Members. 
 
The impact of the PWLB consultation on the Council's investment strategy has been reviewed and reported to relevant Officers and Members, and will be reported to 
PGF Sub-Committee in January. The current and future year’s capital programmes will be updated accordingly, along with the Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy. 
 
Initial investigations have begun into alternative/ESG compliant funding possibilities including Green Investment Bonds, and Treasury investments are being reviewed to 
ensure value for money is maintained in light of reducing interest rates. 

          

R2028 Development and roll out of Member Training to support commercial investment decisions 31 March 2021   10% 

This work stream has been delayed due to other urgent priorities, including assessing the financial implications of Covid-19 on the Council's commercial investments. 
Although some research has begun the majority of this work will take place in Q3/4. It is expected to have the training package developed by the end of the financial year 
and rolled out to Members during 2021/22. 

          

R2029 Understand business rates and council tax avoidance, how can these be minimised and income 
maximised 

 31 March 2021   20% 

This is deferred until 2021/22 due to the impact of Covid 19 and the additional work streams Revenues & Benefits have administered as a result. These have included: 
various Business Grant schemes and additional business rate reliefs; a significant increase in the number of claims for Local Council Tax Support; making Hardship Awards 
to 18,500 Council Tax customers; issuing food vouchers to support families with children who receive Free School Meals; administering the Test and Trace Support 
Payment Scheme; responding to increased customer contact to review and re-arrange instalments and payment plans.  
 
For the Council Tax discount review - the optimum time to complete the review is early June 2021 with procurement of an external partner in April 2021. Business Rate 
avoidance - we use an external company to identify unrated/under rated business properties. There is a national issue with permissible avoidance and a detailed review 
of this is needed to understand the impact on the Disc Rate Relief Policy this will be undertaken in 2021/22. 

          

R2030 Implementation of the Key Decision Action Plan 31 March 2021   35% 

P
age 75



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Training via e-learning is currently being written. 10 modules are currently planned, including one for procurement procedures. Annual Procurement activity will be 
considered by relevant O&S Committees as part of their work programming sessions 

  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  6 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 

N2001 Lead an Electoral Review to ensure areas have the recommended numbers of voters 31 March 2021   86% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2001.A Consultation and engagement on the proposals 31 August 2020   100% 

The first phase of consultation is now complete. 

N2001.B Final council report submitted to Boundary Commission 30 September 2020   100% 

Both the sizing and boundary reports have been submitted to the LGBC. 

N2001.C Final decision on the ward and councillors numbers made by the Boundary Commission 31 March 2021   60% 

The LGBC responded to our proposals and put forward suggested changes regarding the boundaries. We are currently in a second phase of public consultation which will 
end on Feb 8th 2021. We will be informed by the LGBC on May 11th regarding the final boundaries. They agreed with the proposal for the number of councillors and have 
confirmed this will remain at 60. 

          

N2002 Plan for and deliver Census 2021 31 March 2021   62% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2002.A Confirm work programme following guidance from Office of National Statistics 31 August 2020   100% 

The Council has appointed Census Lead Officers who are in liaison with ONS about the requirements. A project plan is in development to outline the key tasks and the 
stakeholders that need to be involved. Meeting have taken place with officers earlier in the month regarding the census delivery and a timeline has been provided by 
ONS. 

N2002.B Recruitment and communication complete for census 2021 31 March 2021   25% 

We have a communication plan which links to the national communication campaign. We are currently promoting the various roles via our social media channels and 
networks. We are also starting to liaise with key stakeholders about census messages to key audiences - schools, protected groups etc. 

P
age 77



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  6 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

          

N2003 Develop new Communications Strategy 2020-23 31 January 2021   10% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2003.A Consult members and leadership to agree objectives and priorities 31 October 2020   10% 

Initial internal discussion has taken place. Consultation sessions have been delayed due to Covid-19 work commitments. 

N2003.B 
A refresh of the council’s communication strategy will be completed during 2020/21, following 
the conclusion of our current three-year plan 

31 January 2021   10% 

Initial work plan is being developed in relation to this. Due to Covid-19 work commitments the communications strategy will now be completed in 2021/22. Lessons learnt 
from communication over the previous 12 months will be included within the strategy. 

          

N2004 Expand super-fast broadband to at least 25% of the borough through Full Fibre to premises 
project 

31 March 2021   30% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2004.A 
Agree with Greater Manchester partners how benefits of super-fast broadband will be 
maximised across the borough 

31 December 2020   20% 

GMCA have a GM One Network programme that is currently formulating a business case to provide the options as to how overlay services can be provided on top of the 
full fibre network. 

N2004.B 
67 premises (of 99) with a public sector presence across the borough connected with full fibre to 
increase connectivity 

31 March 2021   50% 

Installation work commenced in December 2020. It is envisaged that 25% of sites will be completed by the end of March 2021. DCMS (Department of Culture, Media and 
Sport) have extended the deadline for when the grant money can be spent until 30/06/2021 due to some delays caused by COVID implications to the wider programme. 

N2004.C 
Enable the use of the full fibre for residents and businesses through engagement and 
appointment of a market supplier 

31 March 2021   20% 

In terms of enabling the use of full fibre for residents and businesses. The GM One Network business case will identify the options available and recommend the way 
forward. 

P
age 78



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  6 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

  

N2005 Work in partnership to implement new community safety plan to reduce Crime and disorder 31 March 2021   43% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2005.A 
Implement new ‘Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour’ borough-wide action plan and 
strategy with partners 

30 November 2020   50% 

Action Plan has now been drafted. New Crime and ASB Priority Group now established. On course to finalise March 2021. 

N2005.B Implement new ‘Reducing Reoffending’ borough- wide action plan and strategy with partners 31 December 2020   60% 

Action plan now drafted. Awaiting sign feedback from RSCP Board prior to finalising. 

N2005.C Complete Community Safety Partnership information sharing protocol with partners 31 March 2021   20% 

IG Team reviewing. Still in draft form. 

  

N2006 Implement plans to prevent community tensions and support a more cohesive and integrated 
community 

31 March 2021   100% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2006.A 
Work in partnership with the voluntary sector in the delivery of cohesion and integration 
activities to support the recovery of the borough post Covid 19 

31 March 2021   100% 

Participation of several community group meetings online with support from Action Together e.g. Fortnightly Inclusive Messaging Group, Fortnightly Grassroots gathering 
meetings and quarterly Equalities Assemblies. 
 
There is approval from the RSCP to explore opportunities to layer in Safer Communities priorities into some of these groups. 

P
age 79



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  6 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

          

N2007 Co-ordinate the roll out of Public Service Reform across the borough 31 January 2021   75% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2007.A 
Partnership put in place to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and Social 
Care following reform benchmark exercise 

31 October 2020   100% 

Partnership is in place (Public Services Reform steering group) and main governance structures have been aligned.  Ongoing reform activity now fits within this structure.   

N2007.B 
Continued development of new service models as health and social care and voluntary sector 
transformation takes place 

31 January 2021   50% 

Good Help and MEAM (Make Every Adult Matter) service models Q3 activity is complete.  This has included specific work linked to the Pandemic along with aligning 
MHCLG Community Champions funding with new service model development.  An audit of cases across Adult Social Care, Place Teams and Focused Care Workers is 
expected in early 2021.   

          

N2008 Complete roll out of integrated place teams and develop plan around future delivery 31 March 2021   88% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2008.A Complete annual citizen-led leadership challenges in partnership with GMCA 31 December 2020   100% 

Ageing in Place, MEAM and Good Help have been identified as priorities by citizens and leadership challenges are in place with associated action plans.  The MEAM and 
Good Help work has coproduced metrics in place to enable transparency when working with citizens / people with lived experience.  This includes participatory research, 
which was undertaken during Qs 2-4. 

N2008.B 
Following pilot stages, embed place teams, as part of neighbourhood and locality working, 
demonstrably contributing to the reform and effective delivery of public services 

31 March 2021   75% 

Place Teams are established in localities to the extent that case work is undertaken across a range of multidisciplinary teams.   However, the level of integration with the 
local neighbourhood teams varies by place and is more embedded in localities where a physical provision (pre covid) has been in place.   

 

P
age 80



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  6 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

  

N2009 Finalise and commence delivery of Climate Change Strategy 30 November 2020   25% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2009.A Agree priorities of dedicated budget 31 October 2020   25% 

This a task for the Climate Emergency Working Group. The group will establish an action plan of priority work and the budget will be allocated accordingly. The Council 
has set aside £1m over 5 years. Some of the money has already been used to support the recruitment of a Climate Change Project Manager and there is an intention to 
use some funds to help roll out the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (a funding bid has been submitted via GMCA to support implementation of energy efficiency 
measures on public buildings. We will find out how much we have been awarded in mid-late February (up to 11 million). 

N2009.B Development of delivery plan to address climate change 30 November 2020   25% 

The working group has been established in January - stakeholder invitation letters have been issued. The intention is to organise a first meeting of the group to consider 
development of an action plan. 

          

N2010 Transform and improve customer and digital provision 31 December 2020   75% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2010.A Final sign off and action plan in place for Rochdale Digital Strategy 31 October 2020   80% 

A draft strategy was in place, but work has been delayed in finalising due to covid-19 commitments. Lessons learnt through Covid, including issues around digital exclusion 
and digital poverty will be included in the latest draft. Engagement will take place with Corporate O&S and a draft strategy will be shared with Informal Cabinet in March 
prior to wider consultation. 
 
 

N2010.B Agree future role and scope of the Council’s Customer Contact Centre 31 December 2020   70% 

P
age 81



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  6 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Engagement has been taking place with services to develop an overarching plan for the Customer Contact Centre around people and place. This is due to be completed by 
March 2021. 

  

 

P
age 82



Agenda 
Item 

 

 

Report to Cabinet 

 

 

Date of Meeting 25th February 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate Delivery 
Report Author Julie Murphy 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

Financial Update on the Covid-19 Pandemic 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. 
 
 

To update Members on the forecast financial position relating to the impact of 
Covid-19 on the Council. 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
 

Members are requested to note the financial impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic on the Council and the funding provided by the Government to help 
mitigate this. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 

To update Members on the use of the emergency Government funding to 
mitigate the additional expenditure/loss of income resulting from the Covid-19 
pandemic. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 

Background 
 

In response to the pandemic, the Government has made a series of policy 
announcements, some of which have impacted on local authorities. The 
Council is dealing with a wide range of issues to support residents and 
businesses which will have a considerable impact on the Council’s financial 
position both in the short term and in the longer term. 
 
The financial impact is being reviewed and updated regularly to reflect the 
latest information available. Monthly returns are submitted to the Ministry 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) detailing the 
forecast additional expenditure and loss of income in relation to the 
pandemic. This report reflects the return as at the end of January 2021 and 
subsequent government announcements. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 10



4.2 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
4.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.2.7 
 
 
 
 

Government Funding 2020/21 
 
Some of the government’s initiatives have been supported by additional 
funding, and the Council has received a number of government grants, 
which can be split into general grants, specific grants and grants for 
businesses. 
 
General Grants 
 
Emergency funding for local government 
£22.2m share of the £4.6bn total funding to support local authorities to 
manage pressures on social care and support vulnerable people and to help 
deal with pressures on other public services. 

 
Income compensation scheme for lost sales, fees and charges 
A one-off income loss scheme to compensate local authorities for 
irrecoverable and unavoidable losses from sales, fees and charges income 
generated in the delivery of services, during 2020/21. It is currently 
estimated that the Council will receive c£1.8m from this scheme. 
 
Specific Grants 
 
Infection Control Fund 
£4.130m share of the £1.1bn Infection Control Fund and care home support 
package. The funding is ringfenced for actions which support care homes 
and domiciliary care providers mainly to tackle the risk of Covid19 
infections. 
 
Adult Social Care Rapid Testing Fund 
£0.532m share of £149m to support additional rapid testing of staff in care 
homes, and to support visiting professionals and enable indoors, close 
contact visiting where possible. The funding is ringfenced for lateral flow 
device testing in adult social care. Local authorities will be required to pass 
on 80% of the funding to care homes on a per beds basis, with 20% used 
at the local authorities’ discretion to support the care sector in delivering 
additional lateral flow device testing. 
 
Workforce Capacity Fund 
An indicative £0.554m from the £120m fund for local authorities to boost 
staffing levels. The funding can: 

 provide additional care staff where shortages arise; 

 support administrative tasks so experienced and skilled staff can 
focus on providing care; 

 help existing staff to take on additional hours if they wish with 
overtime payments or by covering childcare costs. 

 
Hardship Fund 
£3.1m share of the £500m total funding: 

 £0.5m targeted to ease financial hardship; 

 Balance to provide increased Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) 
discount to eligible claimants. 

Page 84



 
4.2.8 
 
 
 
4.2.9 
 
 
 
4.2.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.11 
 
 
 
 
4.2.12 
 
 
 
 
4.2.13 
 
 
 
 
4.2.14 
 
 
 
4.2.15 
 
 
 
4.2.16 
 
 
 
 
4.2.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Contain Outbreak Management Fund 
£4.3m in various payments from the Contain Outbreak Management Fund 
to support proactive containment and intervention measures.  
 
Enforcement Funding 
£0.152m share of £30m funding for local authorities for enforcement and 
compliance including Covid marshals.  
 
Reopening High Streets Safely Fund 
£0.197m share of the £50m funding from the European Regional 
Development Fund (ERDF) to support practical measures to allow 
businesses to reopen and to support a range of practical safety measures. 
Due to the strict eligibility criteria it is unclear whether the Council will be 
able to claim all of this funding. 
 
Test and Trace Service 
£1.592m share of £300m additional funding for councils in England to 
support the Test and Trace Service and to develop tailored outbreak control 
plans. 
 
Test and Trace Support Payments 
£0.717m funding for Test and Trace support payments of a £500 lump sum 
payment for those on low incomes to support them if they cannot work 
during their self-isolation period. A further £0.077m for administration costs. 
 
Winter Grant Scheme  
£0.937m funding from the winter package of £170m to provide further 
support for children and families. This funding is ring-fenced, with at least 
80% earmarked to support with food and bills. 
 
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Individuals 
£0.238m to enable councils to support Clinically Extremely Vulnerable 
individuals. 
 
Further funding to support those who are vulnerable 
£0.347m share of £63m for local authorities to assist those struggling to 
afford food and other essentials. 
 
Rough Sleepers - Next Steps Accommodation Programme 
A £0.274m share of £91.5m allocated to help vulnerable people housed 
during the pandemic. The funding will provide interim accommodation and 
support as part of the government's commitment to end rough sleeping. 
 
Community Testing Programme 
Funding to enable local authorities with high prevalence of Covid-19 to work 
in partnership with the government to accelerate a reduction in prevalence 
by identifying asymptomatic cases through local testing and supporting 
them to isolate. Local authorities will received funding of up to £14 per test. 
 
 

Page 85



4.2.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.20 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.22 
 
 
 
4.2.23 
 
 
 
 
4.2.24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Champions Local Authority Fund 
Funding of £0.495m to support a range of interventions to build upon, 
increase or improve existing activities to work with residents who are most 
at risk of Covid-19, helping to build trust and empower at-risk groups to 
protect themselves and their families. The broader aim is to reduce the 
impact of the virus on all communities, beyond just the target areas for the 
scheme.   
 
Culture and Leisure Funding 
Link4Life was allocated £0.666m as part of the £257m provided to 1,385 
venues, theatres, museums and cultural organisations, through the first 
tranche of Culture Recovery Fund. A further £0.522m has been allocated 
from the National Leisure Recovery Fund, which will be passported to 
Link4Life. 
 
NHS/Clinical Commissioning Group Funding 
£3.7m funding from NHS/CCG allocations, mainly to fund hospital discharge 
measures, Personal Protective Equipment, and care provider costs. 
 
Grants for Businesses 
 
Business Grants  
 
£43.2m was paid out in business grants to 3,889 businesses from the Small 
Business Grants Fund and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund, 
during the first lockdown. 
 
£2.3m was also paid out to 252 small businesses in discretionary business 
grants. 
 
£0.170m new burdens funding to support the administration of the business 
grants, and £0.039m new burdens funding for business rates and council 
tax administration. 
 
Local Restriction Support Grant (LRSG) 
£11m of LRSG funding has been received during the year, mainly for 
mandatory payments to businesses.  
 
Closed Business Lockdown Grant 
£9.7m funding has been received for Closed Business Lockdown payments 
during Lockdown 3. One-off payments have been made to businesses 
based on the rateable value of properties. 
 
Additional Restrictions Grant 
£6.7m funding received via Greater Manchester Combined Authority to 
enable councils to develop schemes to support businesses in their area. 
This grant is to be spent by the end of 2021/22 in discretionary grants to 
businesses. 
 
 
 

Page 86



4.2.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.2.27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Business Rates Retail Relief 
The Government has also increased Business Rates Retail Relief to 100% 
for 2020/21 impacting on Retail, Leisure and Hospitality sectors, and 
Nurseries. The financial impact of the additional relief given for the Council 
is forecast to be £21.1m, which will be offset by Government Section 31 
grant funding. 
 
Schools Funding 
 
The Government has also provided additional funding for Schools: 

 Covid Catch-Up Premium – £2.1m 

 Schools Covid exceptional costs – estimated £289k. 

 Wellbeing for Education grant – £31k. 

 Designated safeguarding leads in school – £50k. 
 

Summary of Funding 
 
Table 1 shows a summary of the current funding forecast for 2020/21, 
excluding funding of Business grants, Test & Trace support payments, and 
funding for schools as these relate to non-Council services. Further funding 
may be received depending on how the pandemic progresses. 
 
Table 1 Funding 2020/21 
 

  £m 

Covid Grants (22.231) 

NHS/CCG funding (3.682) 

Infection Control (4.130) 

Hardship Funding  (3.064) 

Test and Trace (1.592) 

Defra Food (0.347) 

High Street Re-opening - ERDF (0.197) 

New Burdens funding for administration of grants (0.286) 

Next Steps Accommodation Provision  (0.274) 

Funding of enforcement (0.152) 

Contain Outbreak Management Funding (4.272) 

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Funding (0.238) 

Winter Pressures (0.937) 

Adult Social Care Rapid Testing Fund (0.532) 

Workforce Capacity Fund (0.554) 

Community Champions Local Authority Fund (0.495) 

Culture Recovery fund (0.666) 

National Leisure Recovery fund (0.522) 

Sales, Fees & Charges - funding for losses (1.759) 

Total Funding (45.930) 

 
 
 
 

Page 87



4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.4 
 
4.4.1 

Government Funding 2021/22 
 
The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced his Spending Round 2021/22 
on 25th November 2020. To support local authorities in England with Covid-
19 pressures in 2021/22, the government expects to provide over £3bn in 
additional support by: 
 

 Providing an additional £1.55bn of grant funding to local authorities 
to meet additional expenditure pressures as a result of Covid-19. 
Rochdale’s share of this funding is £7.6m. 

 Providing local authorities with £670m of additional grant funding to 
help local authorities support the more than 4 million households that 
are least able to afford council tax payments. Rochdale’s allocation 
has been confirmed as £3.1m. 

 Providing an estimated £762m to compensate local authorities for 
75% of irrecoverable loss of council tax and business rates revenues 
in 2020/21, which would otherwise need to be funded through local 
authority budgets in 2021/22 and later years. The government will 
also allow local authorities to spread the remaining deficit over 3 
years. 

 Extending the existing Covid-19 sales, fees and charges 
reimbursement scheme for a further 3 months until the end of June 
2021. 

 
Alternatives considered 
 
Not applicable. 
 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 
 
5.1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Forecast additional expenditure and loss of income 2020/21 
 
As detailed in section 4.2.2, the Council has received emergency funding to 
offset additional expenditure and reduced Council Tax and Business Rates 
income caused by the direct government initiatives in response to Covid-19.  
 
The Council submitted a return to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) on 29th January 2021 detailing the forecast 
additional expenditure and loss of income expected in 2020/21.  
 
Table 2 shows a summary of estimated additional expenditure/loss of income 
in 2020/21, updated for the latest figures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.4 
 
 
 
 
5.1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.1.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 2 Estimated additional expenditure/loss of income 2020/21 
 

  £m 

Expenditure   

Adult Social Care  10.305 

Children's Social Care 0.939 

Education 0.100 

Highways and Transport, Public Health & Housing 8.370 

Cultural & Related 1.242 

Environmental and regulatory services 1.690 

Finance & Corporate  5.994 

Other services 0.491 

Estimated Total Spending Pressure 29.131 

    

Income   

Sales, fees and charges 3.097 

Commercial Income 7.020 

Estimated Total Reduction in Income 10.117 

    

Estimated Spending and Income Pressure 39.248 

 
There is also a forecast £5.9m loss of income in relation to Business Rates 
and Council Tax. The impact on the Council’s General Fund budget can be 
spread over the financial years 2021/22 to 2023/24, and is partially offset by 
government compensation, as detailed in Section 5.2. 
 
Table 3 summarises the Council’s position for 2020/21 
 
Table 3 Summary 2020/21 
 

  £m 

Estimated Total Spending Pressure 29.131 

Estimated Total reduction in Income 10.117 

Estimated Spending and Income Pressure 39.248 

    

Total Funding  (45.930) 

    

Unallocated Funding  (6.682) 

 

The remaining £6.7m of the general Covid Grant will be carried forward to 
2021/22 in order to meet expected further Covid pressures.  The future 
pressures that are expected to arise, and have previously been forecast for 
2020/21, are within Children’s Social Care, Economy, Cultural services and 
Investments.   
  
 
 
 

Page 89



5.2 
 
5.2.1 
 
 
 
5.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.2.5 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
5.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.3.2 
 
 

Collection Fund 2020/21 
 
There is a considerable impact on the Collection Fund in 2020/21 as a result 
of the impact of Covid-19 and government initiatives. This will impact on the 
Council’s General Fund in 2021/22. 
 
For 2020/21 the Council’s General Fund income relating to Business Rates 
and Council Tax was approved at Budget Council, and is guaranteed. 
However, the net impact on the Council of the 2020/21 Collection Fund 
forecast is a net deficit of approximately £5.9m. This takes into account 
increased government funding to offset the impact of: 
 

 Increased Business Rates Retail Relief to 100% for 2020/21 impacting 
on Retail, Leisure and Hospitality sectors, and Nurseries. 

 Increased Local Council Tax Support discount. 
 
The forecast deficit is due to: 

 Lower anticipated collection rates re Business Rates and Council Tax, 
and the need for higher bad debt provisions. 

 Anticipated higher level of Business Rates and Council Tax discounts. 

 Reduced/delayed expansion of Business Rates and Council Tax 
bases re developments/ new build plans.  
 

The government will compensate local authorities for 75% of irrecoverable 
loss of Council Tax and Business Rates revenues in 2020/21, which would 
otherwise need to be funded through local authority budgets in 2021/22 and 
later years. The government will also allow local authorities to spread the 
remaining 2020/21 deficit over 3 years. The net impact on the Council’s 
budget is £1.288m in 2021/22; £0.680m in 2022/23; and £0.680m 2023/24. 
This may be subject to change once detailed guidance on the calculation of 
the compensation is received from the government. 
 
There is likely to be a longer term impact on Business Rates and Council Tax 
income dependent on the recovery of businesses and households. The 
estimated impact for 2021/22 and future years has been reflected in the 
Revenue Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24 being reported to Cabinet on 25th 
February 2021. 
 
Forecast additional expenditure and loss of income 2021/22 
 
The current forecast for the impact of Covid in 2021/22 is £24.4m, made up 
of: 
 

 £12.0m on non-grant specific costs. 

 £2.1m sales, fees and charges losses. 

 £8.2m of commercial income losses. 

 £2.1m reduction in Business Rates and Council Tax income 
  

The funding for 2021/22 includes:  
 

Page 90



 
 
 
 
5.3.3 
 
 
 
 

 £6.7m of the 2020/21 Covid Grant carried forward. 

 £7.6m 2021/22 Covid Grant. 

 £1.2m of compensation for the sales, fees and charges income. 
 
The 2021/22 position will be updated throughout the year, and the Council 
will continue to lobby the government for funding to offset all additional 
expenditure and loss of income resulting from the pandemic. 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 

6.1 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
The use of reserves may be required to address the ongoing pressures as a 
result of the pandemic, if the government does not continue to provide 
adequate funding. Any reserves deployed would require replenishing to their 
original value. 
 

Consultation 

 
7.1 
 
 
 
 

 All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Delivery have been updated on the financial 
implications for the Council resulting from the Covid-19 outbreak. 

 

 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

   

 

 Samantha Smith 
samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924198 

 

Page 91

mailto:samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk


1 
 

 

Report to Cabinet 

 

 

Date of Meeting 30th March 2021 

Portfolio Leader of the Council and Cabinet 

Member for Finance 

Report Author Samantha Smith 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Finance Update Report P10 

 

Executive Summary 

 

1. To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 

Council’s forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end of January 2021. 

1.1 The Finance Update report contains details of the following: 

 The forecast Revenue outturn position is an in-year saving of £2,552k, which is 

an increase of £390k from the position reported to 9th February Cabinet. This is 

after the transfer of £7,451k of Covid 19 funding into 2 earmarked reserves, for 

use in 2021/22. Non-Covid-19 in-year savings are currently reported at £2,552k, 

which includes a number of budget carry forward requests that are being 

considered, and a transfer to a new reserve.  

 

 Budget Council approved on 3rd March 2021 that any in-year revenue savings for 

2020/21 to be transferred to the Equalisation Reserve. 

 

 There continues to be a pressure on the High Needs Block Dedicated Schools 

Grant (DSG). The 2020/21 in-year pressure is £1,770k, leaving a closing 2020/21 

deficit position on the DSG reserve of £4,970k, which will require addressing going 

forward. 

 

 Savings plans of £4,171k ongoing and £280k one off were included in the 2020/21 

budget. There is a balance to address of £389k relating to the impact of Covid-19, 

which is an increase of £22k from the period 8 forecast 

 

Page 92

Agenda Item 11



2 
 

 An update on the Health & Social Care Pool Fund position, which, after the 

application of Covid 19 Emergency funding, will leave a breakeven position. 

 

 Forecast 2020/21 Capital expenditure of £53,512k, after the re-phasing of 

£7,568k to 2021/22, and Capital budget increases of £687k. 

 

 The forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position of a deficit of £26,748k, which will 

be partially mitigated by increased government Section 31 grant of £21,324k, 

leaving a residual pressure of £5,424k, relating to the impact of Covid-19. The 

Council’s share of the residual net pressure is £4,688k.   

Recommendations 

 

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, DSG, 

Capital, and the Collection Fund as at the end of January 2021, as detailed in 

section 4. 

2.2 Cabinet notes the forecast Health & Social Care Pool Budget position as detailed 
in section 4.2. 

 
2.3 Cabinet approves the Budget Pressure requests detailed in section 4.3, and 

Cabinet note that any increased budget requirement in relation to the annual 
review of insurance provision will be funded from Public Contingency. 

 
2.4 Cabinet notes the transfer of £7,451k of Covid 19 funding into 2 earmarked 

reserves, for use in 2021/22, and the transfer of £500k to the Development Fund 
Reserve as detailed in section 4.1.4. 
 

2.5 Cabinet note that after accounting for agreed budget carry forwards any 
remaining in-year savings will be transferred to the Equalisation Reserve. 

 
2.6 Cabinet notes the forecast unachieved Savings target in section 4.4. 
 
2.7 Cabinet notes the net Capital budget changes of £687k for 2020/21 and £3.000m 

in 2021/22 detailed in section 4.6.1. 
 
2.8 Cabinet notes the Capital re-phasing of £7,568k detailed in section 4.6.3. 
 
2.9 Cabinet approves the use of the £170k compensation payment received relating 

to Middleton Arena to be used to fund related Legal costs with the remaining 
balance used to replenish the Asset Management Capital Scheme for costs 
already incurred as detailed in 4.6.2. 

 
2.10 Cabinet approves the requests for capital budget switches within 

Neighbourhoods and Economy Service as detailed in section 4.6.4. 
 
 
 

Page 93



3 
 

 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 

3. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, 

as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are 

spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 

This report focuses on the forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end 
January 2021. 
 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 

4. Revenue Budget 2020/21 

 

4.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 26th February 2020 was £224,127k. 
Increases in budget in this financial year up to period 10 are detailed in the 
following table: 

 

 
 There have been no changes since period 8 Finance Update report was 

finalised. 

The Revenue Budget Table in 4.1.2 provides detail of budget allocations and the 
estimated 2020/21 financial position. 
 

Approved 
by 

When Reason for change 
Amount 
(£'000) 

Budget 
Council  Mar-20 Approved budget 

   
224,127  

Cabinet Apr-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 2   6,116  

Cabinet Apr-20 Hardship Funding   3,064  

Cabinet Apr-20 
S31 - Covid-19 Grant Business Rates relief 
compensation 

20,950  

Cabinet Jul-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 3 2,416  

Cabinet Jul-20 
Business Rates Top up Grant - final settlement 
adjustment 

677  

Cabinet Jul-20 New Burdens grant relating to Covid 19 170  

Cabinet Jul-20 S31-Business Rates Grant Relief adjustment 292  

Cabinet Oct-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 4 6,199 

Cabinet Oct-20 New Burdens Funding – Admin Support Grant  39 

Cabinet Nov-20 
Loss of sales, fees & charges income 
compensation 1,759 

    GRAND TOTAL   265,810  

Page 94



4 
 

4.1.1 The forecast position as at the end of January 2021 is a General Fund in-year 

saving of £2,552k: 

 Non Covid-19 in-year savings are forecast currently at £2,552k. 

 

 There remains £7,451k of Covid-19 Emergency Government Funding; the 

unutilised funding has been transferred to 2 earmarked reserves in order to 

meet expected further Covid pressures. The future pressures that are 

expected to arise, and have previously been forecast for 2020/21, are within 

Children’s Social Care, Economy, Cultural services and Investments. 

Budget will be allocated to Directorates to offset the pressures related to 

Covid-19. 

The forecast position is a movement of £390k from that reported to February 
Cabinet, of which:  
 

 (£169k) relates to non-Covid 19 decreased in-year saving, mainly relating 

to Adult Care and Neighbourhoods offset by an adverse movement within 

the Economy Directorate. The table in section 4.1.2 provides further detail 

of the movements by directorate since February Cabinet. 

 

 £559k relates to reduced forecast pressure relating to Covid-19 in 

2020/21, with the expectation that the pressures will occur in 2021/22. The 

£7,451k forecast balance of unutilised general Covid Grant has been 

transferred to a reserve. The final contribution to the reserve could be 

reduced should there be costs incurred prior to year-end. In particular it is 

anticipated there will be some costs in relation to Link4Life, however these 

values are not yet confirmed. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 95



5 
 

The table below provides detail by Directorate:  
 

Directorate/Detail Current 

Controllable 

Net Budget 

Forecast 

Controllable 

Outurn P10 

Forecast In-

Year Saving 

(Overspend) 

Previous 

Monitoring 

Report P8 

Movement 

since 

February 

Cabinet 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adult Care 45,351 44,639 712 - 712 

Children’s 49,534 

 

,48,392 1,142 1,178 (36) 

Economy 15,235 16,030 (795) (185) (610) 

Neighbourhoods 49,947 49,684 263 278 (15) 

Public Health  19,299 19,249 50 - 50 

Resources 14,415 14,116 249 202 47 

Total Services Spending 193,781 192,160 1,621 1,473 148 

Contribution from Integrated Pool Budget  (102,339) (102,339) - - - 

Contribution to Integrated Pool Budget 102,339 102,339 - - - 

Total Pooled Budgets 0 0 - - - 

Finance Control Corporately Held Budgets 46,571 45,640 931 1,248 (317) 

Covid-19 Emergency Funding 22,231 14,780 7,451 (559) 8,010 

Transfer to Covid-19 Reserves - 7,451 (7,451) - (7,451) 

Finance Control Budget Pressures 557 557 - - - 

Total Finance Control Spending 69,359 68,428 931 689 242 

 
Net Expenditure 263,140 260,588 2,552 2,162 390 

Uncontrollable Budget Spend 2,670 2,670 - - - 

Total Budget 265,810 262,258 2,552 2,162 390 

 
 

 
 

P
age 96



6 
 

The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are not related 

to Covid-19 are detailed below, and further detail may be found in Appendix A: 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Adult Care 

The core service provision is forecast to deliver an 
in-year saving of £0.7m due to a combination of staff 
turnover, reduced residential placements and one 
off-funding. 

712 

Children's  

General Fund - Children's Social Care (CSC) is 
forecasting an in-year saving of £1,142k. Cared for 
numbers have started to increase since December. 
Once children return to school on 8th March 
referrals are expected to increase similar to the large 
influx the service received when children returned in 
September 2020.  There is also a pressure within 
Special Education Needs Transport which is in line 
with the growth throughout 2019/20 now having full 
year impact and continued growth within 2020/21. 
There are underspends of £336k in Early Help and 
Children's Centres in relation to vacant posts and 
delays in recruitment. There are further savings on 
Schools Support which relates to over achievement 
of income (£250k) partially offset by pressures in 
SEND (£363k). 
 
DSG - There continues to be a pressure on the High 
Needs Block dedicated schools grant due to the 
continued growth in Education Health Care Plans 
and Sen Support. The Period 10 position is a 
£1,770k deficit, all special schools within the 
borough are now at maximum capacity therefore any 
further requests for places will ultimately have to be 
placed out of borough at independent schools which 
is a high cost provision. The service are working with 
schools at both primary and secondary level to 
increase SEND provision within the borough. Once 
schools return the demand for education health care 
plans is expected to increase but the financial 
impact of this will be in 2021/22.The High needs 
cumulative deficit position is £4,970k. 

1,142 

Page 97



7 
 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Economy 

The Economy Directorate is reporting an in-year 
pressure of £795k. There are pressures within 
Properties as a result of unachieved savings and 
rental income, and a pressure within the Property 
Growth Fund (PGF) due to a lower than expected 
level of investment as a result of the availability of 
suitable investment opportunities.  These pressures 
are expected to be short to medium term.  The 
Property Project Team are able to increase income 
within Industrial Estates and PGF projects are 
forecast to perform better than expected in the 
longer term from the next financial year onwards, for 
properties that are already within the Fund.  
Investments made going forward will have 
regeneration as the primary focus before any 
financial yield. 

(795) 

Neighbourhoods 

The Neighbourhoods Directorate is reporting a 
potential in-year saving of £263k which is detailed in 
Appendix 1. This is net of budget carry forward 
requests which are subject to approval. 
 
A request to ring-fence £170k of the Directorate 
underspend to cover costs associated with Facilities 
Management Services in 2021/21, was approved by 
Cabinet at period 8 and does not form part of the in-
year saving. This carry forward will allow the service 
to offer a competitive service whilst operational 
strategies are developed. 

263 

Finance Control 

An in-year saving of £931k is forecast due to 
continued internal borrowing and rephasing of the 
capital programme being partially offset by reduced 
investment income as within the Treasury 
Management Strategy.  
£500k has been transferred to establish a new 
reserve for The Development Fund. 

931 

Public Health 
Public Health are reporting a forecast in-year saving 
of £50k due to staff vacancies within the Service. 

50 

Page 98



8 
 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Resources 

The Resources Directorate is reporting a potential 
net in-year saving of £249k. There are pressures 
within the Legal Shared Service with Manchester 
which are currently under discussion.  This pressure 
is partially mitigated from in-year employee savings 
from vacant posts, temporary arrangements, and 
one off funding. There is also an in-year saving in 
relation to the Occupational Health Contract.  There 
is a request to carry forward £158k which is included 
in the reported figure. 

249 

Total   2,552 

 
 

4.1.3 It is been approved at Budget Council to transfer any revenue in-year savings to 

the Equalisation Reserve. 

 In addition the establishment of a £500k Development Fund reserve has been 

approved. This fund being used to support the Council in attracting external grants 

to contribute towards the funding/delivery of the Council’s objectives in relation to 

the Regeneration of the Borough. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



9 
 

 

 

4.1.4 The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are related to 

Covid-19 are detailed below: 

Expenditure £'000s 

Adult Social Care  10,305 

Children's Social Care 939 

Education 100 

Highways and transport, Public Health & Housing 3,781 

Cultural & Related 54 

Environmental and regulatory services 1,498 

Finance & Corporate  6,050 

Other services 983 

Estimated Total Spending Pressure 23,710 

Less funding received for Infection Control, Test & Trace, 
Hardship Fund and Health (via CCG) 

(17,143) 

Estimated Funding Pressure 11,056  

Income £'000s 

Sales, fees and charges 2,821  

Commercial Income 7,151  

Estimated Total reduction in Income 9,972  

Total Estimated Pressure 16,539  

Government Emergency Funding (22,231) 

Forecast Government compensation re Sales, Fees & 

Charges Income (1,759)   

Funding for forecast pressures in 2021/22 (7,451)   

 

Work continues to assess the financial impact and timeframe involved relating to 

Covid-19. The longer term implications are being considered to support the Council 

in its financial planning going forward. 

Two reserves have been set up to earmark funds to be used to offset the post 

2020/21 impact of Covid 19, recognising that some of the forecast financial impact 

of the pandemic in table 4.1.4 will not materialise until 2021/22 and future years. 

Page 100



10 
 

The 2 reserves are for demand led and economic pressures and the Government 

Emergency funding will be applied as and when the pressure materialises.  

 

The current forecast for the impact of Covid in 2021/22 is £24.4m, comprising: 

 £12.0m on non-grant specific costs. 

 £2.1m sales, fees and charges losses. 

 £8.2m of commercial income losses. 

 £2.1m reduction in Business Rates and Council Tax income 

The forecast Budget Carry forward of £7,451k relating to Covid-19 will be used to 

partially mitigate these costs, along with additional Government Funding.  

The amount to be transferred to the reserves will be finalised as part of the year 

end process, and is dependent on ongoing developments relating to the Covid 19 

pandemic. It is noted that costs associated with the recovery plan for Link4Life 

could reduce the amount of contribution made in 2020/21. 

The Council will, with other Greater Manchester councils, continue to lobby the 

government to provide further funding to offset the ongoing financial impact of 

Covid-19. 

4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget 
 

As at the end of January 2021, the forecast gap in the Pooled Fund for 2020/21 is 

£4,800k, this being net of specific grants and relates wholly to Covid-19 pressures 

in the Council. This pressure will be funded by Government emergency funding, 

leaving a balanced position.  

The CCG are forecasting a balanced budget position due to the continuation of the 

‘command and control’ approach used by NHS organisations in response to 

significant emergencies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



11 
 

4.3 Budget Pressures 

 

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2020/21 reported to February Cabinet was £576k; 

the following table details adjustments and requests received to the end of 

January 2021: 

 Service 

Ongoing 

£000s 

One off 

£000's 

Total 

£000s 
Narrative 

Opening Balance 
2020/21 Period 10 

473.9 83.1 557.0 
The balance brought forward is net of 
previously approved allocations 

Period 10 
Requests:     

Economy  9 9 
Additional one off charges for Town 
Hall valuations with future years 
ongoing charges detailed below 

Remaining Balance 
2020/21 

473.9 74.1 548 Total of remaining pressures budget 

2021/22 Requests     

Economy 1.8  1.8 
Town Hall valuations increase in costs 
ongoing for 3 years 

Resources  52.5 52.5 

Transformation post extended for 12 
months and therefore a request for a 
further 12 months funding split over 2 
years.  

Neighbourhoods  55 55 

9th February Cabinet approved £55k of 
one off funding for Hollingworth Lake 
Country Park Management costs; to be 
repaid during 2022/23 

Neighbourhoods  (250) (250) 

Previously approved future year 
pressure relating to the Integrated 
Place Team is to return due to being 
funded from another source 

2022/23 Requests     

Resources  52.5 52.5 

Transformation post extended for 12 
months and therefore a request for a 
further 12 months funding split over 2 
years. 

Neighbourhoods  (55) (55) 
Repayment of funding for Hollingworth 
Lake Country Park Management costs 

 

If the requests are approved the balance remaining for budget pressures in 

2020/21 is £548k; £474k ongoing and £74k one off. The following table details 

the commitments and balance remaining in the budget pressure fund for 

2021/22. 

 

Page 102



12 
 

 

2021/22 Budget Pressures 

 Service 

Ongoing 

£000s 

One off 

£000's 

Total 

£000s 
Narrative 

Available Funds 1473.7 551.8 2025.5  

Resources 
 41 41 

Legal Case Management System 
replacement 

Resources 
 4 4 MeLearning software contract 

Economy 
1.8  1.8 

Town Hall valuations increase in costs 
ongoing for 3 years  

Neighbourhoods 
 80 80 Integrated Place Team 

Neighbourhoods 
75  75 

N1R retail unit – non achievement of 
income target; to be used by 
Registrars 

Resources 
56.2  56.2 

Human Resources 2 posts (part 
funded) 

Children’s 
16  16 

Parent assessment Manual 
assessments 

Neighbourhoods 
 46 46 

Homelessness step down 
accommodation 

Neighbourhoods 
60  60 

G20 cybersecurity post 

Neighbourhoods 
 55 55 Hollingworth Lake Country Park 

Resources 
 52.5 52.5 Transformation post funding 6 months 

Total 2021/22 
Budget Pressures 
Remaining 1264.7 273.30 1538  

 

The Council’s Insurance contract is in year 4, however under the terms and 

conditions of the contract, there is an annual review of the Council’s insurance 

requirements which can impact on the premium. Following the previous review in 

year 3, an estimated increase has been included as part of the 2021/22 budget 

setting process, however, it should be noted by Members if the premium for 

2021/22 is to increase above the estimated value then an allocation will be made 

from Public Contingency. 

4.4 Savings 
 

The overall savings target for Services for 2020/21 is £4,451k (£4,171k recurrent, 

and £280k one-off). Services have identified savings proposals which have a 

balance to address relating to Covid-19 of £389k as shown in the table below.  

The change from Period 8 is an increase in the pressure of £22k mainly due to 

the Early Payment initiative due to delays. 

Page 103



13 
 

Service Nature of Saving Savings 

Target - 

Ongoing 

Savings 

Target - 

One Off 

Total 

Balance 

to 

Address 

Balance 

to 

Address 

relating to 

Covid-19 

     £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

  Sub Total Adults 1,284 60 - - 

  Sub Total Children's 166 - - - 

Economy N1 Riverside Utilisation Income 35 - 35 35 

  Sub Total Economy 60 - 35 35 

N’hoods Capitalisation of Building Support 

Team and reduction in Training 

Budget 

100 - 67 67 

N’hoods Waste Vehicle cleaning 17 - 17 17 

N’hoods Income generation from 

advertising / Digital advertising 

screens 

 

7 

 

- 

 

7 

 

7 

N’hoods Place based asset management 

system 

100 - 40 40 

  Sub Total Neighbourhoods 499 100 131 131 

Public 

Health 

System wide prevention review 

(including YP Substance Misuse 

and Sexual Health Contract 

review) 

129 - 103 103 

  Sub Total Public Health 230 0 103 103 

Resources Early Payment Initiative - 120 120 120 

  Sub Total Resources 1,932 120 120 120 

 Savings Grand Total with 

Balance to Address 

4,171 280 389 389 

Page 104



14 
 

 

4.5 Transformation Fund 

 

The following schemes were due to achieve savings during 2020/21, but have been 

impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic: 

 Adult Care, Accommodation Strategy - There has been a delay to the 

progression of the Accommodation Strategy as consultancy support has been 

refocused to Covid-19 work, meaning that expenditure will be reduced from 

£120k to £66k, resulting savings of £54k will not be realised until 2021-22. 

 

 Neighbourhoods, Place Based Asset Management – delays with the project. 

Projected savings of £100k have been partially mitigated by £60k in year 

savings within Neighbourhoods service, and the remaining £40k is forecast 

not to be achieved due to the impact of Covid-19.  

 

 Resources, Invoice Processing/Oxygen Project – the initiative has been 

impacted by the decision at the end of March 2020 to make immediate 

payment to suppliers with the intention of ensuring service continuity and 

supporting suppliers as the impact of Covid-19 progressed. 2020/21 savings 

are forecast to be nil rather than the original £120k.  At 27th October Cabinet it 

was agreed to resume standard supplier payment terms of 30 days. This has 

not had the expected impact and Supplier take up has been minimal. 

 

4.6 Capital Budget 2020/21 
 

The forecast position for the 2020/21 Capital Budget is £53,512k, with spend 

to date of £32,262k (60.3% of budget).  The table below shows a summary of 

the budget movements to the end of January 2021: 

  
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

£'000s £'000s £'000s 

BUDGET AS AT END NOVEMBER 2020 60,393 121,774 45,444 

Capital Budget Changes 687 3,000 - 

Rephasing Requests P10 (7,568) 7,568 - 

BUDGET AS AT END  JANUARY 2021 53,512 132,342 45,444 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



15 
 

4.6.1 Capital Budget Changes 
 

Details of the changes to capital budgets are shown in the table below 

Service Narrative 
Funding 
Method 

Capital Budget 
increases/ 
(decreases)  
£000's 

Adult Care Disabled facilities grant 
External 
Funding 

354 

Economy 
Michael Faraday Avenue 
Grant 

External 
Funding 

500 

Economy National Heritage grant 
External 
Funding 

245 

Neighbourhoods 

Reduction in borrowing 
costs relating to funding 
received for Local 
Transport Plan  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

(410) 

Total Capital Budget Increases   689 

 

The Michael Faraday Avenue grant of £500k in 2020/21 and £3,000k in 2021/22 was 

approved as a new scheme funded by grants at 27th October 2020 Cabinet. 

4.6.2 £170k of compensation funding has been received for works at Middleton 

Arena. It is proposed that this is used to reimburse the Legal costs incurred with 

the remaining balance to be added to the Asset Management Group budget as 

this budget has funded the necessary works in previous years.  

4.6.3 Capital Re-phasing requests to the end of January 2021 which have been 

approved by the Chief Finance Officer are shown in the table below.  

Service Narrative Rephasing  
Requested 
£000s 

Adult Care Better Care Fund - this funding is for  
development of integrated neighbourhood team 
sites which will continue into 2021/22 due to  
delays relating to Covid-19 

363 

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant -  Funding is for  
adaptations and building works however  
implementation has been delayed due to Covid  
and inability to enter premises 

976 

Page 106



16 
 

Service Narrative Rephasing  
Requested 
£000s 

Children’s  
Service 

New Place Planning- The Service is in  
discussions with the Department for Education 
about wider sufficiency within the Borough and  
working on placements going forward over the  
next five years. The building schemes to  
increase the number of pupil places at Brownhill  
Learning Community ASC school, Harwood  
Park and  St Johns Primary schools, and to  
increase dining capacity at Falinge Park High  
School, will be completed in the next financial  
year.  

2,000 

Children’s  
Service 

Schools Capital Condition Programme:- this  
rephasing request is relating to various schools 
 due to delays in the current financial year with  
Contractors during the Covid-19 period. 

800 

Children’s  
Service 

Special Provision Capital Fund:- Capital  
 investments in the provision for pupils with  
Special Educational Needs and disabilities are  
ongoing into next financial year with work on the 
 Autistic Secondary level at Falinge Park and  
will continue into 2021/22 with work on  
Castleton Primary, and Kingsway Park High  
school.  

297 

Children’s  
Service 

CWD Residential Home:- A residual amount of  
funding was retained in 2020-2021 for feasibility 
 studies which did not take place this year these 
 will now take place in the next financial year. 
 

30 

Economy Town Centre Schemes - £300k to be rephased  
for Drake St due to delays in the South Parade  
scheme during lockdown. £200k to be rephased  
on the Town Centre 3 Year Strategy scheme  
due to some site delays, therefore completion  
will be on Q1 2021/22. £120k to be rephased on  
the Town Centre Masterplan schemes for the  
on-going work of the Masterplans to continue in  
2021/22 

620 

Economy Asset Development Fund - rephase request  
from current year to future year 2021/22 to reflect 
 delayed start of projects 

350 

Economy Property Growth Fund - request from current  
year to future year 2021/22 to reflect the  
delayed start of projects 

150 

Economy Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility : £30k to be  
rephased to 2021/22 to continue with project 

30 

Page 107



17 
 

Service Narrative Rephasing  
Requested 
£000s 

Economy Smithybridge Railway Station : a masterplan is  
to be developed with a range of external  
organisations that will take place in 2021/22 

100 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme - A  
request is made to rephase to 2021/22 due to  
changes with spend profile 

50 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

New Cemetery Sites - Request to rephase  
budget into 2021/22 to cover the cost of  
replacing the cremators at Rochdale Cemetery. 
The timeframe for the tendering of this  
contract has been protracted due the impact of  
Covid-19. 

110 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair - Request to  
rephase budget into 2021/22 to cover the cost  
of transforming the lodge into a memorial hall. 
Contractors are on site but delays caused by  
recent weather conditions will push back  
completion of the scheme.  

28 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

Section 106 - Environmental Management - A  
request is made to rephase budget into 2021/22 
 to facilitate the completion of a number of play 
 and sports schemes including major schemes  
which are underway at Balderstone Park and  
Robinson's Common, the Middleton Gym  
scheme which will commence when its current  
use as a Covid19 test centre ceases, the Roach 
 Dynamos scheme which is awaiting design  
approval from the FA and the Darnhill Play  
scheme which is currently going through  
procurement. 

1,146 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

Townships Capital - Environmental  
Management - Work on a small number of the  
schemes approved by Townships relating to  
environmental improvements will be undertaken 
during 2021/22.  

96 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

Upgrade Play Equipment - A request is made to 
vire budget from Replacement Parks/Street  
Machinery (£20k) and Waste Bin Replacement 
(£60k) to Upgrade Play Equipment and to then  
rephase £156k into 2021-22 to support a  
programme of works which are required to bring  
play areas up to a good standard in the shortest 
period of time. £76k of the rephase request  
relates to the completion of works at Springfield 
Park. 

156 

Page 108



18 
 

Service Narrative Rephasing  
Requested 
£000s 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

Vehicle Replacement Programme - The  
process to replace a number of fleet vehicles is  
currently underway.  During the procurement  
process it has been established that, in the  
current economic climate, the time taken to  
purchase vehicles has extended beyond the  
normal timeframes and a request is therefore  
made to rephase budget into 2021/22.56 

56 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

GM Full Fibre Programme - A request is made  
to rephase budget to 2021/22 as project has  
been delayed due to Covid and is ongoing 

50 

Neighbourhoods  
Service 

Service Desk System Replacement - A request  
is made to rephase budget as delay to  
implementing 

60 

Neighbourhoods 
Service 

Customer Transformation Programme - A  
request is made to rephase budget to 2021/22  
as project is ongoing 

500 

Neighbourhoods 
Service 

Highways Investment Programme - Carriage  
Ways / Footpaths Programme has been  
progressing well and is ahead of programme.  
Budget requested to be rephased back to cover  
this overspend. 

(400) 

  Total Rephasing 7,568 

 

4.6.4 The following budget switches are requested to fund expenditure: 

Service Scheme Budget 
Switches 
£000s 

Economy Middleton Town Centre Phase 3 : Scheme now 
completed, therefore budget transferred to the 
Heywood, Middleton, Littleborough Masterplan 
budget 

(5) 

Economy Heywood/Middleton/Littleborough Town Centre 
Masterplans:  On-going work on the development 
of the Masterplans which will continue in 21/22 

5 

Neighbourhoods Kirkholt Investment – The scheme is reporting an 
underspend which is requested to be transferred to 
the Balderstone Park project. 

(50) 

Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery - A request 
is made to vire budget from Replacement 
Parks/Street Machinery to Upgrade Play 
Equipment to support a programme of works which 
are required to bring play areas up to a good 
standard in the shortest period of time. 

(20) 

Page 109



19 
 

Service Scheme Budget 
Switches 
£000s 

Neighbourhoods Section 106 - Environmental Management - A 
request is made to rephase budget into 2021/22 to 
facilitate the completion of a number of play and 
sports schemes including major schemes which 
are underway at Balderstone Park and Robinson's 
Common, the Middleton Gym scheme which will 
commence when its current use as a Covid19 test 
centre ceases, the Roach Dynamos scheme which 
is awaiting design approval from the FA and the 
Darnhill Play scheme which is currently going 
through procurement. 

50 

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment - A request is made to 
vire budget from Replacement Parks/Street 
Machinery (£20k) and Waste Bin Replacement 
(£60k) to Upgrade Play Equipment and to then 
rephase £156k into 2021-22 to support a 
programme of works which are required to bring 
play areas up to a good standard in the shortest 
period of time. £76k of the rephase request relates 
to the completion of works at Springfield Park. 

80 

Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme - A request is 
made to vire budget from the Waste Bin 
Replacement to Upgrade Play Equipment to 
support a programme of works which are required 
to bring play areas up to a good standard in the 
shortest period of time. 

(60) 

 Total 0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



20 
 

4.6.5 Capital Receipts 

Capital receipts are received on the sale of various assets including land, 

buildings and vehicles. The forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 

Reserve during 2020/21, and provisionally for 2021/22 to 2022/23 are included 

in the table below. 

Description 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

 
£000’s 

 
£000’s 

 
£000’s 

Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2020 11,142 10,238 1,424 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2020/21 Capital 
Programme, including prior year schemes rephased 
into 2020/21 

(2,914) - - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 2021/22 
and 2022/23 Capital Programmes, and 2020/21 
rephasing into future years 

- (6,392) (44) 

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future 
commitments  

- (4,469) - 

Capital Receipts income 2,011 2,047 1,726 

Forecast Capital Receipts balance as at 31st 
March 2021 

10,238  1,424  3,106  

 

4.6.6 The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 

2022/23 is £3,106k. 

4.7 Collection Fund 

4.7.1 The forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2020/21 is a deficit of 
£26,748k, comprising: 

 

 £23,493k deficit relating to Business Rates, partially offset by 

Section 31 grant of £21,324k; 

 £3,255k deficit relating to Council Tax. 

The 2020/21 Collection Fund is forecast to be significantly impacted by the 

impact of Covid-19 and Government initiatives. This will impact on the Council’s 

General Fund in 2021/22, and there is expected to be a longer term impact on 

the level of Business Rates and Council Tax income. 

4.7.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position, and the 

allocation between precepting authorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111



21 
 

 

   Table 1 – 2020/21 Collection Fund forecast deficit 

  Business Rates Council Tax Total 

  % £'000 % £'000 £'000 

Forecast Collection Fund 
(surplus)/deficit at 31/03/21   23,493   3,255 26,748 

            
Preceptors' Share of 2020/21 
outturn           

Rochdale BC 99 23,258 84.61 2,754 26,012 
GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime 
Commissioner  0 0 10.71 349 349 
GMCA Mayoral General  
(including Fire Services)    1.00  235 4.68 152 387 

            

Total forecast outturn 
(surplus)/deficit 100 23,493 100 3,255 26,748 

 

The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund deficit is £26,012k, which 

will be partially offset by Government Section 31 grant funding of £21,324k, 

leaving a net deficit position of £4,688k.  

The following table provides the explanation of variances relating to Business 

Rates: 

Explanation of variance 

Variation 
to 

budget, 
£'000 

Decreased net Business Rates income principally due to the 
government decision to give 100% relief to the Retail, Leisure and 
Hospitality sectors for 2020/21, linked to the Covid19 pandemic; 
Section 31 grant to offset the discount given is received in the 
Council's General Fund. Reduced levels of gross income and higher 
levels of Empty Property discount are also forecast, linked to the 
impact of the pandemic. 

22,527 

Increased charge relating to the bad debt provision due to the likely 
impact of Covid19 on debt collection. 

1,732 

Actual surplus brought forward from 2019/20 is £766k higher than had 
been forecast as part of the 2020/21 Budget process.  

(766) 

2020/21 Deficit 23,493 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 112



22 
 

The following table provides an explanation of variances relating to Council 

Tax: 

Explanation of variance 

Variation 
to 

budget, 
£000 

Reduced level of discounts given partially offset by reduced Council 
Tax income raised. 

(350) 

Forecast increased level of Local Council Tax Support discount given 
due to increased numbers of claimants, partially offset by government 
Hardship Funding. 

1,289 

Increased charge relating to the bad debt provision as a result of 
anticipated impact of Covid 19 on debt collection. 

702 

A deficit of £937k brought forward from 2019/20 instead of the 
(£677k) surplus forecast as part of the 2020/21 Budget process. This 
was mainly due to the decision to increase the level of the Bad Debt 
provision as a consequence of the likely impact of Covid19. 

1,614 

2020/21 Forecast Deficit 3,255 

 

The Council’s 2021/22 General Fund budget set at 3rd March 2021 Budget 

Council included an estimated 2020/21 Collection Fund deficit of £22.399m; the 

estimate includes the impact of the government schemes to spread any Council 

Tax or Business Rates deficit for 2020/21 over the three financial years 2021/22 

to 2023/24, and to compensate local authorities for 75% of Council Tax and 

Business Rates losses. The deficit will also be mitigated by a transfer of 

£21.111m from the Section 31 reserve.  

Any difference between the estimated 2020/21 deficit and the actual 2020/21 

deficit will be held in the Collection Fund in 2021/22. 

There will be a longer term impact on Collection Fund income which is 

dependent on the recovery of businesses and households. This will impact on 

the Council’s core funding for services. Work is ongoing to assess the longer 

term impact on the Council’s financial position. 

4.9 Alternatives considered 

4.9.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 

Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is critical 

to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and are 

targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 

identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 

action. 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



23 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 
2020/21 Finance Outturn position. 

 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no significant legal implications arising as a result of this Report to 

the Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, but it should 
be noted that debts, which are recoverable, can be enforced by Court action in 
accordance with the Court Procedure Rules. 

 
The impact of Covid-19 pressures relating to additional expenditure and lost 

income is estimated to have a very significant impact on the Council’s financial 

position both in 2020/21 and in the medium term. The Council has completed a 

review of its reserves to assess whether some of the financial pressure may be 

mitigated in both the short and longer term. The use of reserves to address 

pressures as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak is a one off solution which cannot 

be sustained in the long term. The Council has indicated that any reserves 

deployed would require replenishing to their original value. The Council is 

continuing to lobby the government to provide further funding to offset the 

pressures. 

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 

2017 cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income 

retained by the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure 

that any changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the 

future impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the provision for 

any backdated elements. 

 The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) alters rating assessments if new 

information comes to light indicating that the valuation is inaccurate. These 

could relate to a demolition, new property builds or other physical changes to a 

property. The number of alterations, financial impact and timing of the 

revaluations are not within the control of the Council. There is an on-going risk 

that issues decided nationally by the VOA could potentially impact on Rochdale 

BC’s Business Rates income. 

 The future level of collection of Corporate Debt, Business Rates and Council 

Tax debt is a potential financial risk, particularly with the impact of the Covid-19 

pandemic. Collection performance is being monitored on a monthly basis to 

ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, whilst 

making adjustments to reflect the current circumstances being imposed on 

businesses and residents, and so that any trends may be highlighted and action 

taken as necessary, at the appropriate time. Debt collection is likely to be 

significantly affected by the impact of Covid-19 both in this financial year and 

Page 114



24 
 

future years, and the forecast 2020/21 bad debt charges and provisions have 

been increased to reflect the increased risk of non-collection. 

 

Consultation 

 
7. All services engage with the production of the directorate based financial 

information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 

Member for Corporate Delivery, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance 

have been informed of the forecast 2020/21 financial position of the Council 

and its implications for future years. The report has been presented to the 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 25th March 2021. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. For further information about this 

report or access to any 

background papers contact 

Samantha Smith 

No1 Riverside Floor 2  

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  

Tel : 01706 924198 

 

  

Page 115

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


25 
 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget ‘Variations to budget’ narrative – January 2021 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000s 

Forecast 
Spend 
£’000s 

Variance 
£’000s 

Adult Care Management :- In-year pressures relating to staffing, Service Level Agreements 
and ICT costs 

(5,125) (5,057) (68) 

 Adult Care Neighbourhoods: - There is a forecast in-year saving against Neighbourhoods 
due to a combination of one off funding and residential placements remaining 
lower than normal. 

41,540 41,110 430 

 Adult Care Boroughwide Services:- Forecast pressures from commissioned places for 
service users 

3,591 3,620 (29) 

 Adult Care In House Provider Services:-  Forecast in-year saving due to staff turnover 936 617 319 

 Adult Care Governance Business Support & Home Improvement Agency:-  Forecast in-year 
saving due to staff turnover 

823 686 137 

 Adult Care Commissioning:-  In-year pressure from delay in achievement of savings from 
Prevention contracts, mitigated by savings elsewhere in the service 

2,386 2,488 (102) 

 Adult Care Statutory Functions:- minor variations 830 805 25 

  Adult Care Variation to Budget  44,981 44,269 712 

Children's  Cared for Children: - Underspend related to Cared for children’s numbers 
remaining static and a reduction in child protection plans throughout April to 
November 2020. Since December 2020 numbers have risen however not all 
placements have resulted in a cost for example some children are placed within 
the extended family. 

26,668 26,060 608 

 Children's Practice Improvement: - Underspend largely due to one off savings related to 
current vacant posts/delays in recruitment and additional income achieved on 
ASYE. 

1,960 1,708 252 

P
age 116



26 
 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000s 

Forecast 
Spend 
£’000s 

Variance 
£’000s 

 Children's Early Help/Sure Start: - Savings in relation to vacant posts and delays in 
recruitment, the service have been through the process of a restructure. 

5,042 4,706 336 

 Children's School Support: - Overachievement of income on Personnel and Governors 
Service and underspends on bus passes. 

1,391 1,141 250 

 Children's Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- The significant growth within 
SEND is putting increased pressure on SEND transport. This is in line with the 
pressure on the High Needs Dedicated Schools Grant (discussed below) both 
budgets are now feeling the pressure of full year impact of the growth in SEND 
numbers in 2019/20 and continued growth in 2020/21. 

6,402 6,765 (363) 

 Children's Youth Service: - Underspends relating to vacant posts and activities as events 
cannot happen in the same format due to Covid. 

91 32 59 

 Children's High Needs Block - Pressure due to the full year impact of 2019/20 growth of 
Education Health Care Plans and the continued growth within 2020/21. Rochdale 
special schools are now at full capacity so all future requests for places will result 
in out of borough Independent schools which is a high cost provision. The service 
and schools are working together to increase in-borough provision.  

0 1,770 (1,770) 

 Children's Contribution from DSG Reserve: - 2019/20 High Needs deficit £3,200k, including 
the in-year position this is now £4,970k. 

0 (1,770) 1,770 

  Children's Services Variation to Budget  41,554 40,412 1,142 

Economy 
 

Properties: - There are ongoing pressures in relation to Industrial Estates as a 
result of underachieved savings and rental income growth.  The Project Team 
have been reviewing the Commercial and Industrial Estate, but the team are 
currently unable to increase the income during this financial year due to 
restrictions associated with Covid 19 and the requirements for further capital 
investment needed in the estate. 

92 177 (85) 

P
age 117



27 
 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000s 

Forecast 
Spend 
£’000s 

Variance 
£’000s 

Property Growth Fund: - Driven by actual levels of investment to date being lower 
than initially estimated at the fund's inception, as a result of the availability of 
suitable investment opportunities.  These pressures are expected to be short 
term with projects forecast to perform better than expected in the longer term 
from the next financial year onwards. 

(2,019) (1,309) (710) 

  Economy Services Variation to Budget  (1,927) (1,132) (795) 

Finance Control Interest: -   Continued internal borrowing and rephasing the capital program 
offset by reduced investment income. 

7,311 6,325 986 

Finance Control Debt Repayment:-  Small adhoc variations 9,964 10,019 (55) 

  Finance Control Variation to Budget 17,275 15,844 931 

Neighbourhoods Dippy Project:- In-year saving as project has now ended 96 64 32 

Neighbourhoods Facilities Management:-  In-year saving due to staff vacancies within School 
Trading Accounts and Number One Riverside 

2,505 2,377 128 

Neighbourhoods Environmental Management: - Includes requested carry forward to fund the cost 
of high priority arboriculture works and surveys for bridges in 21/22.  

10,974 10,974 - 

Neighbourhoods  Coroners :-   In-year saving due to delay in scanning project and reduced activity 
in the service 

642 562 80 

Neighbourhoods Community & Townships: -   In-year saving due to staff vacancies within 
Libraries. Budget carry forward requested for Township funds in relation to 
committed projects. 

3,891 3,880 11 

Neighbourhoods  Public Protection: - A budget carry forward request has been in respect of 
enforcement costs linked to Covid enforcement grant. 

587 587 - 

 Neighbourhoods Policy, Performance & Improvement:- Small pressure due to spend on 
subscriptions 

369 382 (13) 

 Neighbourhoods Customer Access :- In-year saving due to efficiencies in contact centre 1,585 1,560 25 

P
age 118



28 
 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000s 

Forecast 
Spend 
£’000s 

Variance 
£’000s 

 Neighbourhoods Highways & Engineering: - A budget carry forward request has been made for 
Townships schemes which not complete within the financial year. 

3,356 3,356 - 

  Neighbourhoods Service Variation to Budget 24,005 23,742 263 

Public Health Public Health Staffing & Non-Staffing: - There is an in-year saving on staffing due 
to the service having vacant posts. 

1,345 1,295 50 

  Public Health Service Variation to Budget 1,345 1,295 50 

Resources Other Managed Budgets: - In-year savings as a result of vacant posts at Head of 
Service level, plus other temporary arrangements and one off savings in 
2020/21. 

5,087 4,928 159 

Resources Revenues and Benefits: - In-year savings as a result of one off funding. 1,270 1,114 156 

Resources Legal Services: - Pressure within the Shared Legal Service with Manchester City 
Council which is currently under discussion with partners. 

1,943 2,130 (187) 

Resources Human Resources: - In-year savings related to staffing and the Occupational 
Health Contract. 

1,860 1,823 37 

Resources Internal Audit: - In-year savings related to staffing. 628 614 14 

Resources Governance: - In-year savings related to staffing. 1,805 1,735 70 

  Resources Service Variation to Budget 12,593 12,344 249 
 

Total Variation to Revenue Budget - January 2021 (Underspend) 2,552 

 

 

 

 

P
age 119



29 
 

 

 

Appendix B – Capital Forecast Spend by Scheme as at January 2021 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
budget, 
£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Adult Care Better Care Fund 563 200 363  - - 563 

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant 3,060 2,084 976  2,633 2,633 8,326 

Adult Care   3,623 2,284 1,339  2,633 2,633 8,889 

Children's Aiming High For Disabled Child - - -  42 - 42 

Children's Devolved Formula Capital 1,259 1,259 -  483 483 2,225 

Children's Early Years Capital Grant 40 40 -  19 - 59 

Children's New Place Planning 5,020 3,020 2,000  31,700 5,200 41,920 

Children's Schools Access 2 2 -  - - 2 

Children's Schools Cap Condition Programme 3,775 2,975 800  2,673 1,833 8,281 

Children's Healthy Pupils Capital Fund 16 16 -  - - 16 

Children's Special Provision Capital Fund 304 7 297  304 - 608 

Children's CWD Residential Home 30 - 30  1,084 - 1,114 

Children's   10,446 7,319 3,127  36,305 7,516 54,267 

Economy Definitive ROW Improvement Programme 54  54  -     -    -    54  

Economy River Roch Flood Storage 597  597  -     1,000  1,250  2,847  

Economy Rochdale Gateways Environmental 
Programme 

46  46  -     -    -    46  

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estate 1  1  -     50  -    51  

Economy Asset Development Fund 711  361  350   2,002  -    2,713  

Economy Property Growth Fund 2,352  2,202  150   20,000  15,000  37,352  

Economy East Lancashire Railway 80 80 -  322 - 402 

P
age 120



30 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
budget, 
£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Economy Lower Falinge - - -  4 - 4 

Economy Heywood South/Junction 19 20  20  -     2,744  -    2,764  

Economy Railway Strategy Park & Ride 106  106  -     200  -    306  

Economy Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study 210  210  -     335  -    545  

Economy Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility 46  16  30   -    -    46  

Economy Metrolink Feasibility -    -    -     50  -    50  

Economy Birch Fountain & Horse Trough-Middleton 22  22  -     -    -    22  

Economy East Lancashire Railway - Castleton Mast 500  500  -     750  -    1,250  

Economy SmithyBridge Railway Station 100  -    100   300  -    400  

Economy Michael Faraday Avenue 500 500 -  3,000 - 3,500 

Economy Middleton Town Centre Phase 3 91  86  5   -    -    91  

Economy Town Centre East Feasibility 172  172  -     300  -    472  

Economy Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration 3,131  3,131  -     1,700  3,500  8,331  

Economy Rochdale Market 105  105  -     -    -    105  

Economy Town Hall Square PH2 330  330  -     634  2,200  3,164  

Economy Drake Street Phase 2 620  320  300   600  100  1,320  

Economy Town Centre Schemes 2016/17 289  289  -     50  -    339  

Economy Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy 672  472  200   250  -    922  

Economy Hopwood Hall Refurbishment 12  12  -     -    -    12  

Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy 1,367  1,367  -     2,200  -    3,567  

Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 4,709  4,709  -     -    -    4,709  

Economy Milkstone Road Master Plan 50  50  -     1,997  -    2,047  

Economy Hey/Midd/Litt Town Centre Masterplans 160  45  115   -    -    160  

Economy    17,053     15,803        1,250    38,488   22,050    74,091  

Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme 567  517  50   444  444  1,455  

Neighbourhoods ICT Data Centre 162  162  -     -    -    162  

Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) 526  526  -     500  500  1,526  

P
age 121



31 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
budget, 
£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme 91  91  -     260  400  751  

Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund 564  564  -     800  800  2,164  

Neighbourhoods Kirkholt Investment 273  223  50   -    -    273  

Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites 184  74  110   530  -    714  

Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery 86  66  20   120  120  326  

Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way 88  88  -     80  80  248  

Neighbourhoods Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair 176  148  28   -    -    176  

Neighbourhoods Section 106 - Environmental Management 1,626  530  1,096   474  -    2,100  

Neighbourhoods Townships Capital - Environmental 
Management 

225  129  96   10  -    235  

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment 204  128  76   75  75  354  

Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,226  1,170  56   2,205  1,839  5,270  

Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme 360  300  60   360  360  1,080  

Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 2,300  2,300  -     1,750  1,750  5,800  

Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan 2,544  2,544  -     1,967  1,967  6,478  

Neighbourhoods Townships Capital - Highways 583  583  -     150  -    733  

Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme 100  100  -     100  100  300  

Neighbourhoods Energy Efficiency Schemes 84  84  -     -    -    84  

Neighbourhoods Coroners Service accommodation 156  156  -     -    -    156  

Neighbourhoods Additional Highways Funding 219  219  -     -    -    219  

Neighbourhoods J19 Feasibility 3,501  3,501  -     23,032  -    26,533  

Neighbourhoods Developer Contributions 75  75  -     -    -    75  

Neighbourhoods Property Transfers From Townships 42  42  -     -    -    42  

Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme 50  -    50   876  -    926  

Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement 60  -    60   50  50  160  

Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme 490  490  -     1,300  1,430  3,220  

Neighbourhoods Travellers Authorised Stopping Site 70  70  -     -    -    70  

P
age 122



32 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
budget, 
£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency 50  50  -     1,000  1,000  2,050  

Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines 17  17  -     -    -    17  

Neighbourhoods Dippy Exhibition Equipment 3  -    3   -    -    3  

Neighbourhoods N1R Revolving Doors -    -    -     120  -    120  

Neighbourhoods Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto Funding 50  50  -     123  -    173  

Neighbourhoods Accelerated Housing 150  150  -     1,250  650  2,050  

Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing 2,751  2,751  -     -    -    2,751  

Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme 1,225  725  500   150  -    1,375  

Neighbourhoods CCTV Upgrade -    -    -     172  -    172  

Neighbourhoods Library Self Service 70  70  -     -    -      

Neighbourhoods Extended Library Hours -    -    -     150  -      

Neighbourhoods GM Air Quality Monitoring Station 52            52  -     -    -    52  

Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage         62            62                -                -               -             62  

Neighbourhoods Highway Investment Programme    4,815       5,215  (400)      2,000     1,320     8,135  

Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School 200          200               -        1,184              -       1,384  

Neighbourhoods 26,077  24,222  1,855   41,232  12,885  79,974  

Public Health Link4Life Capital Project             
-    

            -                 -         4,616         360      4,976  

Public Health -    -    -     4,616  360  4,976  

Resources New HR & Payroll System        151          154              (3)               -                -           151  

Resources Manchester Airport    3,730       3,730               -                -                -        3,730  

Resources Investment Fund            -                -                 -        1,500             -        1,500  

Resources    3,881       3,884  (3)      1,500            -       5,381  

                 

Total Capital Forecast Position at January 2021  61,080    53,512        7,568   124,774   45,444  27,578  

 

P
age 123



33 
 

 

 

 

P
age 124



34 
 

Appendix C – Collection Fund 

Business Rates 

The 2020/21 forecast outturn position relating to Business Rates is a deficit 

of £23,493k.  

Description Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/  
Deficit 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 
movement 
from 
previous 
update 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Gross income (87,190) (86,790) 400 (592) 

Net Small Business Rate relief 7,682 8,300 618 100 

Mandatory Charitable relief 4,354 4,300 (54) (54) 

Discretionary relief 1,983 23,160 21,177 274 

Empties & Part Occupied relief 3,614 4,000 386 (500) 

Net Income (69,557) (47,030) 22,527 (772) 

Less:          

Charge re bad debt provision 800 2,532 1,732 0 

Allowance for cost of collection 308 308 0 0 
Provision for rateable value 
revaluations  3,932 3,932 0 0 

Renewable energy schemes 582 582 0 0 

Net yield (63,935) (39,676) 24,259 (772) 

2020/21 payments to preceptors/billing 
authority 63,935 63,935 0 0 

In year (surplus)/deficit 0 24,259 24,259 (772) 

(Surplus)/deficit brought forward from 
2019/20 (1,103) (1,869) (766) 0 
Payments to preceptors/billing 
authority re 2019/20 surplus per the 
2020/21 Budget process 1,103 1,103 0 0 

Forecast (Surplus)/Deficit as at 
31/03/2021 0 23,493 23,493 (772) 

 

  

Page 125



35 
 

 

Council Tax 

 
Net Income Raised 
 
The 2020/21 forecast position relating to Council Tax is a deficit of £3,255k.  

2020/21 Forecast Council Tax Income 

Description Budget 
2020/21 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

movement 
from 

previous 
report 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

INCOME         

Income from Council Tax (144,213) (144,100) 113 0 
Income from premium on Empty 
Properties (453) (577) (124) (27)  

Council Tax discounts  14,598 14,167 (431) 0 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
(LCTSS) 19,251 20,540 1,289 (137)  

Prior year adjustments 208 300 92 - 

Total income (110,609) (109,670) 939 (164) 

EXPENDITURE         

Charge re bad debt provision 2,212 2,914 702 (57) 

Total expenditure 2,212 2,914 702 (57) 

Net income to be raised for precept/ 
billing authority after LCTSS 
awarded (108,397) (106,756) 1,641 (221) 

2020/21 payments to Preceptors/billing 
authority 108,397 108,397 -  -  

In year (surplus)/deficit -  1,641 1,641 (221) 

(Surplus)/deficit brought forward from 
2018/19 (677) 937 1,614 -  

Payments to preceptors re 2018/19 
surplus as per the 2019/20 Budget 
process 677 677 -  -  

Forecast (Surplus)/Deficit as at 
31/03/2021 -  3,255 3,255 (221) 

 

 

Page 126



BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 
BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED 
AUTHORITY CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE HELD TUESDAY 9 FEBRUARY 2021 AT 4.30 PM  
VIRTUAL MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Tim Pickstone Bury (Chair) 
Councillor Sam Al-Hamdani Oldham 
Councillor Colin McLaren Oldham 
Councillor Kallum Nolan Rochdale 
Councillor Tanya Burch Salford 
Councillor David Jolley Salford 
Councillor John McGahan Stockport 
Councillor Dena Reyness Stockport 
Councillor Teresa Smith Tameside 
Councillor Sean Anstee Trafford 
Councillor Karina Carter Trafford 
Councillor Joanne Marshall Wigan 
 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Andy Burnham GM Mayor 
Steve Wilson Treasurer, GMCA 
Joanne Heron Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 
Matt Berry Governance & Scrutiny, GMCA 
Jenny Hollamby Governance & Scrutiny, GMCA 
 
 
CI&R/13/21  WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all those present. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors John Leech (Manchester), 
Hazel Gloster (Oldham), Ray Dutton (Rochdale), Patricia Sullivan (Rochdale), Dave 
Morgan (Trafford) and Karen Garrido (Salford). 
 
An apology for absence had also been received from Kevin Lee (GMCA). 
 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 12



CI&R/14/21  CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
Whilst there was no urgent business, the Chair explained that supplementary agendas 
were published and circulated to Members on 2 and 3 February 2021, which 
contained the budget reports. 
 
 
CI&R/15/21  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest received at the meeting. 
 
 
CI&R/16/21  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON  
  TUESDAY 19 JANUARY 2021 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the last meeting held on Tuesday 19 January 2021 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 
 
CI&R/17/21  BUDGET 2021/22 
 
The Chair welcomed the GM Mayor to the meeting and asked for an overview of the 
broad elements of the budget. The GM Mayor explained that decisions had been 
taken to minimise the impact on residents and in-light-of District’s financial positions. 
In different ways, everybody was feeling the financial pressure in January 2021 
caused by the pandemic. The GM Mayor took the decision late last year to freeze the 
mayoral precept, recognising there were on-going priorities that needed to be funded 
from the mayoral general precept. There was funding to continue A Bed Every Night 
(ABEN), which had supported 520 people. Government had provided funding for 
rough sleeper work, but this did not provide the level of funding needed in terms of the 
number of people requiring help. The eviction ban was potentially coming to an end, 
which would present significant challenges. There were almost 400 people in 
Everyone In accommodation from the first lockdown and thousands more in temporary 
accommodation. Currently, the housing situation across Greater Manchester was 
precarious. There was also funding for Our Pass; Leaders had agreed to extend the 
pilot to support young people coming out of the pandemic. The pilot period would now 
run until the summer of 2022, which would be followed by an evaluation period.   
 
In terms of public transport and bus reform, it was envisaged that a decision on the 
future of buses would be made later this year. However, there was uncertainty in the 
budget and the Committee would consider the implications at a future meeting. At the 
present time, the consultation was being evaluated.  
 
Regarding the fire budget, the GM Mayor informed Members that the fire service and 
its sustainability had been under scrutiny for the last two years. The Programme for 
Change had helped understand the finances of the fire service. There were healthy 

Page 128



reserves, therefore there was no need to increase the precept to support ambitions. 
Following events in late 2019 at the Cube in Bolton, safe levels of fire cover had been 
reconsidered. The commitment in this budget was to keep levels at 50 pumps with five 
crew on single pump stations and four on two pump stations; this level could be 
sustained on the mayoral general budget precept for next year and future years. The 
Programme for Change savings that had been identified and could be realised in 
future, but the GM Mayor would prefer not to have to go back to those savings. A new 
Chief Fire Officer was in post and work would take place with him to support the front 
line.  
 
The GM Mayor advised that over all the precept was £90.95 for a band D property. 
There was pressure on Districts and council tax across the borough; there was also 
pressure to freeze the precept. A vast amount of work had taken place by the GMCA’s 
Treasurer to reduce the burden on Districts and to minimise costs this year. 
 
The GMCA’s Treasurer reported that the Police and Crime Panel last week confirmed 
the proposal to increase the police precept by £10 for a band D property. This was the 
only precept that was changing for 2021/22.  
 
Members scrutinised the budget reports, which were due for consideration by the 
GMCA on 12 February 2021. The budget reports were presented by the GMCA’s 
Treasurer. The GM Mayor presented his mayoral budget report. 
 
The budget reports set out the detailed proposals for each budget area including: 
 

 The GM Mayor’s final proposal for his general budget, consistent with a precept of 
£90.95 and the detailed budget and statutory calculations following receipt of final 
information from Districts. 
 

 Contributions from Districts in relation to the transport levy, waste levy and GMCA 
costs 

 
The main points referred: 
 

 The Chair enquired about transport and budget risks around Metrolink, subsidised 
buses and post pandemic patronage. The GM Mayor confirmed that there was risk 
in-light-of the Government renewing the Metrolink funding deal a few months at a 
time. Currently, costs would be funded by Government until the end of the financial 
year, but this remained an on-going concern. About patronage, it was assumed 
that social distancing on public transport would remain in place for a good part of 
this year. Thought should also be given to the relaxation of restrictions and how 
this did not guarantee the return of passengers because people’s working patterns 
had changed with more people working from home. It was envisaged that the 
return of passenger numbers would be slow. Regarding the bus network, 
Government was funding the bus operators. They were being asked if they could 
reduce costs by reducing the network coverage; so far, the loss of services had not 
been noticeable. Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) had asked operators to 
consider frequency rather than the loss of routes. Some risks had been absorbed 

Page 129



and there was a small amount of funding due to underspends in the concessionary 
budget that could be potentially helpful, but it was an on-going challenge. The GM 
Mayor saw this as an opportunity to reform public transport.  
 

 A Member thanked the GM Mayor for his work over the past 12 months under such 
difficult circumstances specifically in terms of help for the homeless, the extension 
of Our Pass and the continuation of the bus reform. Youths and children in the 
Members ward would appreciate the support as they had also suffered during the 
pandemic. The GM Mayor explained that he was keen for Leaders to agree to 
extend the Our Pass pilot because this would benefit year 11 pupils now who had 
been severely disrupted during the pandemic. It was hoped this would allow young 
people to attend the colleges of their choice. The pass had also been extended to 
care leavers in Greater Manchester from the age of 21 as they faced numerous 
pressures and challenges. The ambition around the Greater Manchester network 
similar to that of the London style transport system remained in place and as part 
of that there would be a number of capital improvements to the infrastructure in 
Greater Manchester. The message to Government was that levelling up needed to 
form part of the recovery. 
 

 Linked to the GM Mayor’s point about levelling up, a Member asked about Greater 
Manchester’s position and the clarity of its asks. Reference was made to the £200k 
to be spent on lobbying around the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR). The 
GM Mayor was asked for his view on the receptiveness on Government 
departments to align with Greater Manchester’s policy positions and what else 
could be done to support some of Greater Manchester’s ambitions. The GM Mayor 
explained that the damage to Greater Manchester’s economy through the 
pandemic had been profound and the furlough scheme could be masking a 
redundancy situation. Greater Manchester needed to build on the success of the 
vaccine programme and plan a roadmap out of the pandemic using every part of 
the capacity in the system to start levelling up and making it real for people; this 
was the GM Mayor’s message to Government. Recovery would require all parts of 
the UK, national Government, and local Government to work together to face the 
challenge. The GM Mayor drew attention to the work of the city region to set a 
course towards 2038 for carbon neutrality. There were detailed plans that 
underpinned that ambition. To reach that target, retrofitting had to take place in 
every property in Greater Manchester by 2038 and that could potentially create 
thousands of quality jobs for young people. Work would need to take place with 
colleges to support the development of that workforce. All this needed to be joined 
together and co-ordinated, which could not be carried out by Government and was 
a perfect opportunity for levelling up. Reference was also made to the United 
Nations Climate Change Conference in Glasgow, later this year; the GM Mayor 
suggested that Greater Manchester was well placed to be put in the spotlight by 
Government at that event and to bring forward the investable opportunities to build 
a green economy. Discussions were taking place with Government on this basis. In 
terms of the CSR and lobbying, this work had been but back and a short-term 
budget was being considered in early March 2021. There had been no news from 
Government about the funds being unlocked to get recovery moving. Clarity about 
recovery was crucial. 

Page 130



 

 In relation to bus franchising, a Member commented that it was sensible to await 
the outcome of the consultation evaluation and analysis on patronage post 
pandemic before making any decisions. The GM Mayor was asked to share the 
latest analysis about what the potential costs could be in the future and what the 
impacts on the mayoral precept might be. The GM Mayor advised that it was 
dependent on the Government’s decision regarding revenue funding. The GM 
Mayor was making the argument that the Government should leave in some 
revenue subsidy in the Greater Manchester public transport system as the way 
London had benefitted for many years. If there was no support, then there would 
be an impact on the precept, but this was all dependent on how much the 
Government supported Greater Manchester. Constructive discussions were taking 
place and it was hoped Government would be persuaded to put in place support. 
The Government was talking about recovery partnerships across the country with 
all the urban and suburban areas, where bus revenue funding was in place. There 
was also an intention to move all public transport into a reformed place as part of 
this either as a partnership or a franchising arrangement. Reform to the rail system 
was starting to happen. There was certainly an intention to reform all public 
transport coming out of the pandemic. The implications for the mayoral precept 
would be dictated by the extent to which Greater Manchester could persuade 
Government to leave funding in. If that was not possible, then there would be 
implications, but they were manageable. 

 

 In terms of the temporary support mentioned by the GM Mayor especially around 
transport such as reimbursement for concessionary agreements, a Member asked 
if the temporary support was no longer available from March 2021, how long would 
it be before the impact was felt on travel in Greater Manchester. The GM Mayor 
was asked for the latest information on Government thinking in terms of the 
Metrolink and bus support beyond March 2021. The GM Mayor agreed that should 
support not be received then there would be serious implications for public 
transport. There was a worrying time earlier in the pandemic when funding for the 
Metrolink took time to come through. The GM Mayor highlighted that Greater 
Manchester had never been helped, in the way London had been helped. If 
passenger revenue declined, then there was a problem. Never having investment 
was an issue for Government and Greater Manchester needed relieving of the 
borrowing costs. This was a product of how transport outside London was funded. 
Government had understood this and was working with Greater Manchester but at 
the present time there was no long-term certainty.  
 

 A Member asked about the long-term sustainability of crewing levels, use of 
reserves and council tax freezes. The GM Mayor explained that this was an 
exceptional year in terms of the incomes of residents in Greater Manchester and 
that council tax was a regressive tax. It was not ideal, but it was borne out of the 
necessity of the time. That said, increases had been given over recent years. 
There was a £2m underspend in the budget for 2020/21 so there was some 
headroom; the proposal was sustainable for now. The Programme for Change had 
anticipated further cuts from the central Government grant and the need to look at 
further reductions. Thought would be given to this next year. In-light-of the 

Page 131



experience at the Cube in Bolton, the GM Mayor did not want to drop below 50 
pumps across Greater Manchester.  

 

The GMCA’s Treasurer added, that the fire service was in a strong position 
because the precept was increased in 2020/21 and reserves remained unused and 
reserves had not been used to balance the books this year. The budget set for 
next year also did not draw down reserves. There had been some savings 
delivered outside of the role of the fire fighter work so that meant the budget set did 
not require reserves in 2021/22. The fire service would be in a reasonably strong 
position going into 2022/23. The decision to forego an increase 2021/22, could be 
dealt with on a recurrent basis. Further thought would be given to these areas 
moving forward. The big issue for 2022/23 was around funding received annually 
without any long-term commitment for pension costs, which was about £5m. 
Funding was available for 2021/22 but it was difficult to plan-ahead. A long-term 
settlement around pensions was needed.  
 

 A Member enquired about the Greater Manchester Strategy and performance 
monitoring. The GM Mayor explained that the work of the GMCA had been 
realigned due to the pandemic and agreed to raise performance monitoring with 
Officers outside of the meeting and report back to the Committee. Individual 
schemes could account for all the funding and its achievements.  
 

 A Member drew attention to the GM Mayor’s attendance at a full Council meeting 
in Trafford to discuss policing in-light-of Greater Manchester Police (GMP) being 
put into special measures and asked that the GM Mayor attend a similar meeting in 
Stockport. The GM Mayor agreed to the request. In terms of the police precept, it 
was explained that a decision had been taken to allow increase front line numbers 
by 325 this year and hopefully this would repair some of the damage to front line 
services and address the Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & 
Rescue Services (HMIC) report. Having considered GMP over the last decade, the 
GM Mayor believed that cuts had damaged the force but so had the forces’ 
implementation of the cuts leading to today’s current position. There was an 
opportunity to hear views from all levels and to open-up a new era for GMP.  

 

 There would be a £10 increase in the police precept and £7.25m would be put into 
reserves, taking reserves up to £92.6m. A Member suggested it was a vast amount 
of money to be set aside and potentially not be used. The GM Mayor explained 
that when the Government announced its funding plan, this was the first year there 
had been a significant uplift in the Government grant to GMP to pay for extra 
officers. It was assumed the precept would be £15. However, most but not all 
authorities had done that. When the public was consulted, there was a strong 
message about challenge and using resources effectively. Hence, the precept was 
agreed at £10, which would deliver 325 extra officers this year. Combined with the 
670 officers that had come into post since 2017, there would be, by the end of the 
next financial year 1k officers back from the 2k officers lost in 2010. Regarding the 
reserves, this was contingency funding for the on-going programmes round the 
Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOP) report and to improve the reporting of 
crime. The GMCA’s Treasurer explained the £7m was a net draw down from 

Page 132



reserves in 2021/22. The biggest issue around that was when the settlement came 
in from last year the Home Office front loaded some of the funding for the 
infrastructure to support police recruitment, which had been spread over several 
years. There would also be other one-off costs to support recruitment such as 
extra computer equipment and cars. The net movement in 2021/22 was a draw 
down from reserves that was previously set aside for recruitment to the new officer 
numbers. There were also several other movements from reserves that reflected 
other factors. There was a Covid reserve that had been put aside to cover potential 
on-going costs of the pandemic moving forward. It was a net figure that covered 
movements in and out of reserves.   
 

 A Member raised the issue of anti-social behaviour and engagement with young 
people. It was suggested that young people were provided with opportunities to 
deter them from anti-social behaviour and petty crime. The Member asked if there 
were strategies in place with GMP to work with partners to provide opportunities 
and could importance be placed on engagement with young people to make 
streets safer. The GM Mayor said this was about making neighbourhood policing 
as strong as possible. There was a commitment for a named contactable PC and 
PCSO in every ward to make the connection between the police and communities 
stronger. There was also a plan, which had received some criticism, for school-
based police officers within the budget. This was not about enforcement in schools 
but connecting young people and pathways to opportunities. There was Home 
Office funding to look at serious youth crime and community led pilots were being 
considered to support young people at risk of being drawn into crime or being a 
victim of crime. How to empower local community organisations and the voluntary 
sector was being given serious though. In terms of opportunities for young people, 
the GM Mayor raised Our Pass and how this supported young people with the 
ability to travel to get to the opportunities that they wanted. The GM Mayor 
informed Members about the Greater Manchester Apprenticeship & Careers 
Service (GMACS), which was a single portal for all apprenticeships and career 
opportunities in Greater Manchester, which was now in place. Also picked up was 
a strong core for mental health support through the pandemic and new digital 
mental health services for young people were now available and been widely used. 
Improved support for young people was a challenging picture. As part of the 
GMCA’s life ready work a survey had been carried out with Year 10 pupils; the 
results were challenging in terms of young people reporting the loss of hope for the 
future, the disruption of plans, problems with mental health and wellbeing. An 
urgent response was needed.  
 

 The Committee thanked the GM Mayor for the hard work and support received 
from the GMCA’s Treasurer and team throughout the year, which was very much 
appreciated.  
 

CI&R/18/21  GMCA BUDGET OVERVIEW 
 
The report presented an overview of the proposed GMCA budgets for 2021/22. It 
summarised the position on the mayoral general budget and precept proposals, the 

Page 133



GMCA general budget, GMCA transport budgets including transport levy and statutory 
charge and the GM waste services levy. 
 
The report set out the implications of the proposed budgets and the resultant charges 
on Districts and the mayoral precept. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
Members endorsed the report for consideration by the GMCA on 12 February 2021. 
 
 
CI&R/19/21  MAYORAL GENERAL BUDGET AND PRECEPT PROPOSALS 
 
The report set out the GM Mayor’s proposals for the mayoral general budget (including 
fire and rescue) and sought approval for the mayoral general precept for 2021/22.  

 

The report recommended the setting of the revenue budget for 2021/22 as required 
under Section 42A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (updated in the 
Localism Act 2011) and the precepts and relevant levels of Council Tax required 
under sections 40, 42B and 47 of the Act. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
Members endorsed the report for consideration by the GMCA on 12 February 2021. 
 
 
CI&R/20/21  GMCA TRANSPORT REVENUE BUDGET 
 
The report set out the transport related GMCA budget for 2021/22. The proposed 
transport levy to be approved for 2021/22 was included within the report together with 
the consequent allocations to Districts.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
Members endorsed the report for consideration by the GMCA on 12 February 2021. 
 
 
CI&R/21/21  GMCA GENERAL REVENUE BUDGET 
 
The report set out the GMCA general budget for 2021/22.  The proposed District 
contributions to be approved for 2021/22 of £8.603m were included within the report 
together with the consequent allocations to Districts.  This was a reduction of £437k 
on the contribution for 2020/21.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
Members endorsed the report for consideration by the GMCA on 12 February 2021. 
 

Page 134



 
CI&R/22/21  GM WASTE BUDGET 
 
This report sought Member’s comment on the budget and levy for 2021/22 and on the 
medium-term financial plan (MTFP) for the three-year period to 2024/25.  Those plans 
were delivered by:   
 
1. A total levy requirement for 2021/22 of £162.4m, which represented an average 

2.9% decrease over 2020/21. 
 
2. The MTFP then proposed levy charges of £163.1m in 2022/23, £164.8m in 

2023/24 and £167.6m in 2024/25.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
Members endorsed the report for consideration by the GMCA on 12 February 2021. 
 
 
CI&R/23/21  GMCA CAPITAL BUDGET 
 
The report presented an update in relation to the GMCA’s capital expenditure 
programme for transport and economic and regeneration functions. 

RESOLVED/- 
 
Members endorsed the report for consideration by the GMCA on 12 February 2021. 
 
 
CI&R/24/21  WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 
 
The work programme for the 2020/21 Municipal Year was presented to Members for 
population for future meetings. 
 
At the next meeting the Chair advised that work force issues and working from home 
during the pandemic and the return to work and to review of the scrutiny process that 
would potentially take place in the next Municipal Year.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the work programme be updated following the meeting. 
 
 
CI&R/25/21  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
It was noted that the next meeting would take place on 16 March 2021 at 4.00 pm via 
Microsoft Live virtual event. 

Page 135



Document is Restricted

Page 136

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 142

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	COSActionsList

	5 Corporate Overview an Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2020/2021
	6 Update on the Introduction of Charges for Wheeled Bins
	7 1st & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints
	Append. 1 for 1st & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints

	8 Draft Digital Strategy
	Rochdale digital strategy Final draft March 2021

	9 Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 3 Performance Update

	10 Financial Update on the Covid-19 Pandemic
	11 Finance Update Report (Period 10 - 2020/2021)
	4. Revenue Budget 2020/21
	4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget
	4.3 Budget Pressures
	4.4 Savings
	4.5 Transformation Fund
	4.6 Capital Budget 2020/21
	4.6.1 Capital Budget Changes

	12 Greater Manchester Combined Authority - Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	14 Property Investments - Performance and Risk - 2020/21
	Append. 1 for Property Investments - Performance and Risk - 2020/21
	Append. 2 for Property Investments - Performance and Risk - 2020/21


